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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The Company 1s an important part of RSA Insurance Group plc (the Group) The Company transacts the majority of the UK business,
as described in the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group The directors of the Company have considered whether the Group
approach to strategy, risk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate
regulated entity They have concluded that 1t does

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Company and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013

Business review, principal activities and future outlook

The principal activity of the Company, its subsidiaries and overseas branches 1s the transaction of insurance and related financial
services in the United Kingdom and overseas The principal subsidiaries and associated undertakings are hsted 1n note 34 to the
financial statements

The results for the Company show a profit on ordinary activiues before 1ax of £128m (2012 £406m) for the year, due principally 1o
£435m (2012 £606m) of dividend income from subsidiary undertakings and gross premiums wrutten of £4.221m (2012 £4,293m)
The shareholders’ funds of the Company were £3,550m as at 31 December 2013 (37 December 2013 £4,575m) The reduction in
sharcholders’ funds 1s due principally to the payment of the interim dividend and the reduction in value of the subsidiary undertakings

In the United Kingdom, which 1s the Company's major market, the Company 1s a leading Commercial insurer and a top five Personal
lines insurer through direct and affimity channels  In Commercial the Company offers a full suste of products across Property, Liability,
Motor and Marine and distributes predomunantly through 1nsurance brokers In Personal the Company provides Household, Motor
and Pet insurance through insurance brokers and affinity partners as well as MORE TH>N and eChoice, 1ts direct businesses

In the UK we have made further progress on refocusing the business with good performances in Household, Commercial Property
and Marine, and an improved result in Commercial Motor  However, this was partly offset by the continued challenging conditions
1n Personal Motor, and the strengthening of reserves in Liability which included an addiion of £60m 1o reserve margin

In UK Personal, premiums were down 1% to £1,311m (2012 £1,319} Good growth of 6% 1n Household was driven by our affimity
and broker businesses Motor was down 9% due to our exit from under-performing segments and continuing competitive market
condiions Underlying growih in Pet was good and included strong volume from our affimty parinerships, but overall was down 3%
due to the adjustment to pipehine premium  The underwriting result improved from the 2012 result Household underwriting profits
also improved from 2012 whilst Motor made further losses reflecting the impact of lower velumes impacting our expense ratio and
some abnormal seventy increases (n large losses

In UK Commercial we are making good progress on refocusing the business  After the £60m addiuon to margin the result was an
underwriting loss although a sigmficant improvement on the prior year Premiums were down 6% manly reflecting a reduction of
13% 1n Motor which was dniven by targeted reductions we have made throughout the core portfoho as well as the new arrangements
for our contract with Motabihity Property premiums were down 5% as a result of the continued corrective acions as we focus on
profit over volume The Property underwnting result reflects favourable large loss experience and the benefit of the correcuve actions,
whilst 1n Motor we have seen a much improved underwriting result  The underwniting loss 1n Liability reflects encouraging progress
n our core Liability business but this has been more than offset by some specific 1ssues in our Legacy book We have seen increasing
frequency of deafness claims and losses in certain segments of our Professional Indemmty book mainly from prior year claims As a
result we have strengthened reserves 1n these two books, including an addition of £60m to margin to reflect ongoing uncertamty

In the UK, the fourth quarter saw a series of weather events, with a net cost to our UK business of approximately £49m

The Eurcpean Specialty loss reflects continued large loss activity, particularly in Germany, and we are taking corrective action on the
affected accounts

In the UK, our focus will conunue to be on underwnting profit over volume In UK Commercial we will focus on maintaining the
momentum we have generated on remediating the business and i UK Personal we will focus on mamntaining growth in Household
and Pet whilst reducing our exposure to Motor and driving remedial action

Qur capnal position has come under pressure We are taking strong action to correct the capital weakness Already in 2014 substannal
improvement has come from a £550m Adverse Development reinsurance policy taken out, the sale and leaseback of our Swedish
subsidiary’s headquarters and the sale of most of the equities 1n our invesiment portfolio Selected business disposals are underway
and we have a target for 2014 of increasing capital by at least £300m from this There will be other smaller non-core disposals
thereafter and a tougher regime throughout the Group of capital discipline, including sigmificant portfolio reductions where target
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Business review, principal activities and future outlook (continued)

risk/return metnics are not reached We are sharply increastng our focus on expenses and aim to improve expense ralios across the
business with associated restructuring costs for implementation to come There will also be business lines within the Company which
we adjust significantly

We will consider further options as the Group siabilises If there are sensible alternatives to further reduce legacy nisks or otherwise
create value we will examine them

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are integrated within and managed together with the principal nisks of the Group
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group, which include those of the UK business, and hence the Company, are set out 1n
the estimation techniques, risks, uncertainties and contingencies on pages 112 to0 115, and 1n nsk management on pages 32 to 35 and
116 to 126 of the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group which do not form part of this report

A discussion of the management of financial nisk 1s set out below
Financial risk management

The Company 1s exposed 1o financial nsk through 1its financial assets, financial habthtes, reinsurance assets and insurance habilities
In particular the key financial risk is that the proceeds from the realisation of its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the abhigations
ansing from 1ts insurance contracts

The Company manages its financial assets within a framework that has been developed to seek to ensure the ability 1o meet 1s
obligations under insurance contracts

The Company reviews the duration of its habihities and asset portfolios to ensure that they remain broadly maiched Investment
directives hmit permussible duraton ranges within the individual portfohios These directives also include objectives for hquidity,
asset sector concentration and credit quahty The Company 1s not party to any arrangements for which hedge accounting 1s used

Credur risk

The primary sources of credit nisk within the Company are investment and treasury activities and reinsurance counterparty risk Within
the investment management and treasury activities, a range of bank counterparty concentraiion and credit quality limits together with
other controls are in place to ensure thal exposure 1s managed New reinsurance cover 1s placed with reinsurers that are authonsed as
Approved Reinsurance Counterparttes recommended by the Group Reinsurance Credit Commutiee

Market risk

Market risk anses within the Company’s investment portfclios A Group commutiee oversees the Company’s investment stralegy and
sets appropriate risk limits to ensure that no sigmificant concentrations to individual companies or sectors arnse

Liquudity risk

Liquichty risk 1s considered to be a low risk category Liquidity 1s managed such that the Company maintains a mimmum level of cash
or cash equivalents or highly liquid assets that can be liquidated within a maximum stated pertod of tme  Contingency funding plans
are prepared and monitored to ensure that these mimmum levels are met even 1n stress conditions

Key performance indicators

The directors of the Group manage the Group s operations on a divisional basis as described 1n the Annual Report & Accounts of the
Group For this reason the Company’s directors believe that analysis using key performance indicators (KPIs) for the UK business 1n
aggregale 15 relevani to the Company

A key measure used by the Company 1n managing the business 1s the technical result This measure 15 calculated by aggregaung
earned premiums less claims ncurred less expenses Other key performance indicators include premium growth and regulatory
solvency Details of UK premiums are included within the Business Review above As at 31 December 2013 the Company has an
unaudited Solvency | surplus of approximately £0.3bn (2012 £7 2bn) and a coverage ratic of approximately | 2 times at 31 December
2013 (2012 1 7 umes)




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Key performance indicators (continued)

Further information on financial and non-financial KPls 1s detailed 1 the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group (which do not form
part of this report) within the Strategic report on pages 8 to 43 and the Directors’ and corporate governance report on pages 50 to 63

Employment policy

The Company’s approach and employment pohcy reflects 1ts belief that motivated and skilled employees are cnuical to the Company’s
success

The Company 1s commutted o the promotion of equal opportunities for all employees, creating a working environment that fosters
diversity and nclusion The Company seeks to ensure that recrunment, talent selection and development, reward, performance
management and nternal promotion are all carmied out solely on the grounds of ability, and are enurely free from any form of
discriminauon  To do this, all reasonable adjustments are made, where 1t 1s appropriate to do so, to the Company’s policies, practices,
processes and terms and conditions of employment  The Company 15 also committed wherever possible, 10 employing and developing
people who are disabled or become disabled during their career with the Company Diversity and inclusion are encouraged and
supported and 1n 2013 a global Diversity and Inclusion Programme was established to further build the diversity of our workforce

Our key area of focus 1s to strengthen our pipeline of female employees in senior leadership positions We have a number of imtiatives
underway, including a global female sponsorship programme, female network events and mentorship programmes Enhanced flexible
working opportumties have been introduced, along with a new global recruitment policy and increased mtake of females on our global
talent programmes In 2013, we entered into a partnership with Mumsnet, a UK social networking stte for parents and carers, and RSA
1s a member of 1ts Famuly Friendly Employer scheme

The Company 1s committed to fostering a constructive relationship with recognised independent trade unions, ensuring a regular and
open dialogue on business 1ssues and early consultation on changes affectung the workforce In the UK, Unite 1s formally recogmsed
through a partnership agreement which covers collective consultation and bargaming on behalf of non management employees The
Management Assoctation (TMA) represents managerial employees under a separate consultative agreement

The Company 1s committed to having an engaged and mouvated workforce, believing that 1t has a direct impact on customers’
experience and the Company’s overall long-term success In 2013 the Group continued to partner with Gallup using their Q12 survey
methodology The survey 1s completed by around three million people globally every year and 15 open to all employees, with 92% of
employees participating 1n 2013 The results of the 2013 engagement survey place the Group 1n the top 5% of global orgamsations
with 1,000 or more employees The group also won a range of awards recognising 1t as a great place to work including being placed
in the Top 10 of the UK’s Sunday Times Best Big Companies to Work for the second year runmng

The Group has a long-standing philosophy of encouraging employee share ownership, operating two HMRC-recognised share
schemes Sharebwld and Sharesave Currently, a total of 5,635 employees from across the Group participate in Sharesave,
contributing an average of £73 38 per month for the three year savings plan and an average of £60 73 for the five year savings plan
Sharebuild 1s offered to UK employees only and currently 2,389 employees participate 1n 1t, contributing an average of £77 26 per
month

We believe we can create competitive advantage by bwilding and maintaiming a performance culture where high achievement 1s
recogmsed and rewarded and appropriate actions are taken to address underperformance This focus 1s underpinned by robust
performance management processes to enable a rounded assessment of employee performance All employees are set clear annual
goals built around three key areas of people, customer and outperformance Alongside these goals we set Group wide expectations of
behaviour

As well as assessing current performance we have a ngorous process to support personal development, evaluate future potenual and
ensure a strong and robust talent pipeline To strengthen our approach in 2013, we imtiated a partnership with leading consuliancy
YSC and implemented a new potential model This model enables us to idenufy and externally benchmark our highest potential talent
and get focused insight to tailor appropnate and stretching development interventions

Employees are kept well informed of our strategy and all changes that affect our people Communications are regularly provided
through face to face meeungs and presentations, by email, intranet arucles and staff publications
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Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Employment policy (continued)

The Company actively encourages employees to become involved 1n supporting their local commumties

By order of the Board

~ N Al

I M Mills

For and on behalf of
Roysun Limted
Secretary

26 February 2014




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Dividends

Intenm dividends of £400m (2012 £ml) were declared and paid during the year The directors do not recommend payment of a final
ordinary dividend (2012 faul)

Directors

The names of the current directors are listed on page 1 Mr M Harnis served as a director until is resignation on 31 May 2013 Mr
S P G Lee served as a director until his resignation on 12 December 2013 Mr R J Clayton, Ms D P Cockrem, Mr 1 A Craston and Mr
W R B McDonnell served as directors until their resignations on 13 February 2013 Mr D A Weymouth, Mr D Coughlan and Mr C J

R Rash were appointed directers on 13 February 2013, 23 September 2013 and 8 October 2013 respectively The other directors
served throughout the year None of the directors had any interesis in the shares of the Company

Information included within the Strategic Review

Information retating to overseas branches, financial nsk management, hikely future developments and the Company’s employment
policy 15 contained within the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 5 and 1s incorporated 1nto this report by reference

Auditor
Each of the persens who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
e so far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

s the director has taken all sieps that he ought 1o have 1aken as a director 1n order to make himself aware of any relevant audil
information, and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006

KPMG LLP have confirmed their willingness to continue 1n office as auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2014
A resolution for thetr reappointment will be proposed at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

Essential Contracts and change of control

The Company does not consider that 11, or any of 1ts subsidiaries, has any significant agreements 1o which the company 1s a party that
1ake effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the company following a takeover id that are required to be disclosed
pursuant to paragraph 13(2)(J) of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports)
Regulanons 2008 (as amended), other than as disclosed below

Under the Company’s £500m five year sentor commutted debt facility, 1f a change of control occurs, 1f the majonty of lenders require,
the facility can be cancelled with immediate effect and all outstanding loans, together with accrued interest become due and payable

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors’ responstbility statement 1s included on page 8 of these accounts
Post balance sheet events

Post balance sheet events are set out 1n note 35 on page 50 of these accounts
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Going concern

In considenng the appropnateness of the going concern basis, the Board has reviewed the Company’s ongoing financial commitments
for the next twelve months and beyond The Board's review included strategic plans and updated forecast, capital posiuon, liqudity
and credut facihties and investment portfolio As a result of this review the directors have sausfied themselves that 11 1s appropnate Lo
prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis

By order of the Board

IM Mulls

For and on behalf of
Roysun Limited
Secretary

26 February 2014
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report and the
financial statemenis

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare
the financial siatements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that peniod  In prepaning these financial statements,
the directors are required to

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s+ make judgemeants and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state whether applhicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriale lo presume that the company will continue
n business

The directors arc responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open 1o them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other wrregularities




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc

We have audited the financial statements of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 set out on
pages 10 to 50 The financial reporung framework that has been apphed in thewr preparation 1s appheable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce) having regard to the slatutory requirement for insurance companies to
maintain equalisation provisions The nature of equahsation provisions, the amounts set aside at 31 December 2013, and the effect of
the movement 1n those provisions duning the year on shareholders’ funds, the balance on the general business technical account and
profit before tax. are disclosed in note 23

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audn work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matiers we are required to slate to them
1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibibty to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpintons we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihies Statement set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an
opinion on, the financial stalements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing Pracuces Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www frc org ub/fauditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit for the year then ended,
*  have been properly prepared 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce, and

¢ have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given n the Strategic Report and the Directors” Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matiers where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, in our
opimion

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches not
visited by us, or

« the financial statements are nol in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
*  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

*  we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Monoey Rt A

Murray Raisbeck (Semor Statutory Auditer),

for and on behalf of KFMG LLP. Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

I5 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

El4 5GL

26 February 2014




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Technical account - General business

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Gross premiums written 6 4,221 4,293
Outward reinsurance premiums (701) (622)
Premiums written, net of reinsurance 3,520 3,671
Change 1n the gross provision for unearned premiums (88) (225)
Change n the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share 95 15
Earned premiums, net of remsurance 3,527 3,461
Claims paid
Gross amount (2,739) (2.295)
Reinsurers’ share 355 305
(2,384) (1,990)
Change n the provision for claims
Gross amount "N (288)
Remnsurers’ share (40) (51
47 {339)
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance (2,431) {2,329
Acquisition costs (1,033) (1,038)
Change n deferred acquisition costs 15 23
Administrative expenses (315) (289)
Reinsurance commussions and profit parucipation 36 36
Net operating expenses (1,297) (1,268)
Amortisation of renewal nghts 15 (5) (N
Balance on the techmcal account before change in equalisation provision (206) (137
Change 1n the equalisation provision 23 3 30)
Balance on the Technical Account for General Business (209) (167)

All amounts relaie to continuing operations

The notes on pages 14 to 50 form an integral part of these accounts

10




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Non-technical account

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Balance on the Techmcal Account for General Business {(209) (167)
Investment income 12 609 790
Gains on the realisation of investments 12 - 47
609 837
Unrealised (losses)/gains on trading investments / investment property 12 (135) 46
Revaluation of subsidiary undertakings 17 - (187)
Investment expenses, charges and interest 12 {110) (122)
Foreign exchange losses (6) -
Other charges ¢)) ()
Operating Profit 148 406
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 20) -
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 128 406
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 13 46 7
Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders 174 413
Current year discontinued and acquired operations do not form a material part of the figures above
Statement of total recogmsed gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year 174 413
Foreign exchange losses o)) (©)
Tax (charge)credit on foreign exchange losses (1) 1
Movement 1n valuation of subsidiary and participating interests 17,18 (650} 2
Pension fund actuanal losses 10 149) (160)
UK deferred tax credit attributable to actuarial losses 10 25 35
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year (602) 285
Reconcihiation of movement in shareholders’ funds
Profit
Share Share  and loss
Capital Premium account 2013 2012
Notes £fm £m £m £m £m
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 1,128 2,646 801 4,575 4,312
Shareholders’ recogmsed (losses)/gains - - (602) (602) 285
Interest on subordinated loan note equity instrument net of
tax 21 - - (23) (23) (22)
Dividends paid 14 - - (400) (400) -
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 1,128 2,646 (224) 3,550 4,575

The notes on pages 14 10 50 form an integral part of these accounts
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Registered Number: 00093792

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance sheet

as at 31 December 2013

ASSETS 2013 2012
Notes £m fm
Intangible assets 15 19 26
Investments
Land and buildings 16 306 317
Investments in group undertakings and participating interests
Investment 1n subsidiary undertakings 17 10,229 10,676
Interests in assoclated undertakings 18 15 14
10,244 10,690
Other financial investments
Shares and other varable yteld securities and units 1n unit trusis 362 402
Debt securities and other fixed income securitics 3,281 3,375
Loans and deposits with credit institutions 74 76
16 3,717 3,853
Deposits with ceding undertakings 1 2
Total investments 14,268 14,862
Remnsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 256 164
Claims outstanding 768 310
1,024 974
Debtors
Debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations - policyholders 314 349
Debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations - intermediaries 1,362 1,310
Debiors ansing out of reinsurance operations 515 546
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1,563 1,467
Deferred taxation 25 240 186
Other debiors, including taxation 13 204 230
4,198 4,088
Other assets
Tangible assets 19 85 141
Cash at bank and in hand 203 222
288 363
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 53 55
Deferred acquisition costs 453 430
Other prepayments and accrued income 90 80
596 565
20,393 20,878
Pension fund asset 10 2 29
Total assets 20,395 20,907

The notes on pages 14 to 50 form an integral part of these accounts
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance sheet (continued)

as at 31 December 2013

LIABILITIES 2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Capital and reserves
Called up share captal 20 1,128 1,128
Share premium account 2,646 2,646
Profit and loss account (224) 801
Shareholders’ funds 3,550 4,575
Other capital instruments
Subordinated loan notes classified as equity 1nstruments 21 372 372
Funds attributable to equity holders 3,922 4,947
Subordinated habilities 21 492 492
Technical provisions
Provision for uneamed premiums 2,362 2,286
Claims outstanding 22 4,810 4,804
Equalisation provision 23 319 316
7,491 7,406
Provisions for other risks 24 45 95
Deposits received from remsurers 3 3
Creditors
Creditors anising out of direct insurance operations 119 123
Creditors ansing out of remsurance operations 227 154
Amounts ewed to credit institutions 26 364 348
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 7,223 6,896
Other creditors including taxation and social security 27 116 129
8,049 7,650
Accruals and deferred mcome 203 171
20,205 20,764
Pension fund habhty 10 190 143
Total habilities 20,395 20,907

The notes on pages 14 10 50 form an integral part of these accounts

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Drectors on 26 February 2014 and are signed on 1ts behalf by

APL—

A P Brown

Director

13
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Notes to the accounts
1. Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and in comphance with the Companies
Act 2006, including schedule 3 of the accounting regulauons 1ssued under the Act (Schedule 3) and the Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) on Accounting for Insurance Business 1ssued by the Association of British Insurers in December 2005 (as amended
in December 2006), having regard to the statutory requirement for insurance companies 10 maintain equalisation provisions (see note
23) As noted 1n the investment accounting policy the true and fair overnde has been adopted 1n respect of the valuation of the
Company's investment properties and no depreciation 1s provided The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section
400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as 11 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary
of RSA Insurance Group ple, which prepares group accounts The financial statements have been prepared under the current value
rules, as permitted by Schedule 3, on the going concern basis

In considering the appropriateness of the going concern basis, the Board has reviewed the Company’s ongoing financial commitments
for the next twelve months and beyond The Board's review included strategic plans and updated forecast, capital position, iquidity
and credit facihties and investment portfolio As a result of this review the directors have satisfied themselves that 11s appropniate to
prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis

a) Insurance Contracts - product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer sigmficant insurance nsk at the inception of the contract Insurance sk 1s
ransferred when the Company agrees to compensate a policyholder 1f a specified uncertain future event (other than a change 1 a
financial vanable) adversely affects the policyholder Any contracts not meeting the defimtion of an insurance contract are classified
as investment contracts or derivative contracts, as appropriate and measured 1n accordance with the policies below

b) General insurance business
1. Underwriting result

The underwrniting result, being the balance on the technical account before change 1n equalisation provisions, 1s accounted for on an
annual basis whereby the incurred cost of claims, commussion and related expenses are charged against the earned proportion of
premiums, net of reinsurance Premiums written are accounted for in the year in which the contract 1s entered into and include
estimates where the amounts are not determined at the balance sheet date Premiums writen exclude taxes Dunes levied on
premiums and directly related expenses, € g commuissions are recognised as expenses Premiums are earned as revenue over the
period of the contract and are calculated principally on a daily pro-rata basis Commussion and other acquisition costs incurred 1n
writing the business are deferred and amortised over the period 1 which the related premiums are earned

Claims pad represents all payments made during the period whether arising from events during that or earlier periods
The balance on the general business techmical account 1s arrived at afier taking account of changes 1n the equalisation provision
ii. Techmcal provisions

The provision for unearned premiums represents the proportion of premiums written relaung to periods of insurance coverage
subsequent to the balance sheet date

Acquisition costs compnise the direct and indirect costs of obtaiming and processing new 1nsurance business Deferred acquisition
cosls are amortised on the same basis as the related premiums earned  The reinsurers share of deferred acquisition costs 1s included
within accruals and deferred income

The provision for claims outstanding, whether reported or not, comprises the esumated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
balance sheet date It includes related expenses and a deduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries The provision
is determined using the best information available of claims settlement patterns, forecast inflation and settlement of claims The
provision for clmims outstanding relatung to long term permanent disability claims 1s also determined using recogmsed actuanal
methods

14




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)

i. Technical provisions (continued)

Provisions for ctaims outstanding, and related reinsurance recoveries, are discounted where there 1s a parucularly tong period from
incident to claims settlement and where there exists a suitable claims payment pattern from which to calculate the discount In
defiming those claims with a long peried from incident to claims seitlement, those categories of claims where the average penod of
settlement 1s six years or more from the balance sheet date, has been used as a gutde The discount rate used 1s based upon an
investment return expected 1o be earned by assets, which are appropriate in magmitude and nature to cover the provisions for claims
outstanding being discounted, duning the period necessary for the payment of such claims

Differences between the esumated cost and subsequent settlement of claims are dealt with in the technical account for the year in
which the claims are settled or 1in which the previsions for claims outstanding are re-esumated

At each balance sheet date an assessment 1s made of whether the provisions for unearned premiums are adequate A separate
provision is made, based on information available at the balance sheet date, for any estimated future underwniting losses relating 1o
unexpired nishs The provision 15 calculated after taking inte account future investment income that 1s expected to be earned from
the assets backing the provisions for unearned premiums (net of deferred acquisiion costs) The unexpired nisk provision 1s assessed
in aggregate for business classes which, in the opanion of the directors, are managed together

Equahisation provisions are established 1n accordance with the Prudential Regulatory Authority’s rules for insurers 1o the UK These
provisions, notwithstanding that they do not represent habilities at the balance sheet date as they are over and above the anncipated
ultimate cost of outstanding claims, are required by Schedule 3 to be included within techmical provisions in the balance sheet and
any change in the provisions during the year 1s required to be shown 1n the general business technical account

ii. Remsurance ceded

Premiums payable 1n respect of rewnsurance ceded are recogrised n the period in which the remnsurance contract 1s entered into and
include estimates where the amounts are not determined at the balance sheet date Premmums are expensed over the period of the
reinsurance contract, calculated principally on a daily pro-rata basis

A reinsurance asset (reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities) 1s recogmsed to reflect the amount estimated 1o be recoverable
under the reinsurance contracts in respect of the provisions for outstanding claims reported under insurance contract hiabiliues The
amount recoverable from rewnsurers 1s imuially valued on the same basis as the underlying provisions for outstanding claims The
amount recoverable 15 reduced when there 1s an event ansing after the initial recogmition that provides objective evidence that the
Company may not receive all amounts due under the remsurance contract and the event has a rehiably measurable impact on the
expected amount that will be recovered from the reinsurer

The remnsurers’ share of each unexpired risk provision 1s recognsed on the same basis

Annuities purchased by the Company to make payments under structured settlement arrangements are accounied for as reinsurance
ceded 1f the Company remains liable for the settlement in the event of default by the annuity provider Any gain or loss anising on
the purchase of an annuity 1s recogmised 10 the technical account at the date of purchase

¢) Translation of foreign currencies

Monetary assets and habilinies denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated nto sterling at rates ruling at the balance sheet date
Differences ansing on retranslation are inciuded within the profit and loss account Transactions denominated 1n foreign currencies
are translated into sterling using the cumulative average rate for the financial year The resulung exchange differences are included
within the profit and loss account Non monetary 1tems are translated at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction, and are not
subsequently retranslated

The results of overseas operations are translated at the average rates for the period and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the
balance sheet date The resulting exchange differences are recogmsed 1n the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

d) Investment return
Investment return 15 recognised 1n the non-techmical account and comprises all mvestment income, realised nvestment gains and

losses and movements in unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses Dividends on equity investments are recogmsed on
the date at which the investment 1s priced ‘ex dividend’ Interest income 1s recognised using the effective interest rate method
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Notes to the accounts (continued)

1. Accounting Policies (continued)
d) Investment return (continued)
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between nel sales proceeds and purchase price
Movements i1n unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between their carrying value at the balance sheet
date and their purchase price or their carrying value at the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and
losses recognised 1n earhier accounting periods in respect of mvestment disposals 1n the current period
€¢) Pension costs
Retirement Benefits
A defined contnbution scheme 1s a pension scheme under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity A
defined benefit scheme 1s a pension scheme that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and level of salary
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged 1n the pertod 1n which the employment services qualifying for the
benefit are provided Differences between contributions payable 1n the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as erther

prepayments or accruals 1n the balance sheet

The amounts charged (or credited where relevant) n the profit and loss account relauing to post retirement benefits 1n respect of
defined benefit schemes are as follows

the current service cost,

the past service costs for additional benefits granted 1n the current or earher periods,
the 1nterest cost for the period,

the impact of any curtailments or settlements duning the period, and

the expected return on scheme assets (where retevant)

The current service cost 1n respect of defined benefit schemes comprises the present value of the additional benefits attnbutable 1o
employees’ services provided during the period

The present value of defined benefit obhgations and the present values of additional benefits accruing during the peniod are calculated,
using the Projected Unit Method

Past service costs arise where additional benefits are granted The cost of providing additional benefits 1s recognised on a straight hine
basis over the remaining period of service unul such benefits vest The cost of providing additional benefits that vest on ther
introduction are recognised immedately

The calculation of the present value of accrued benefits includes an actuarial assumption of future interest rates, which 1s used to
discount the expected ultimate cost of providing the benefits The discount rate 1s determined at each balance sheet date by reference
to current market yields on high quality corporate bonds identified to match the currency and esimated term of the obligations The
interest cost for the penod 1s calculaled by multiplying the discount rate determined at the start of the peniod by the defined benefit
obligations during the period

The change 1n the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the changes in the fair value of scheme assets resulting from any
curtailments and settlements of scheme hiabiliues durning the period are recognised in the profit and loss account Additionally, any
previously unrecogmsed past service costs related to these habilities are recognised 1n the gains or losses on settlement and curtailment

The expected return on scheme assets for the period 15 calculated, based upon the average rate of return (including both income and
changes in fair value) net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining hfe of the related obligation on the actual assets held by
the scheme

Actuanal gains and losses anse from changes to actuarial assumptions when revaluing future benefiis, and from actual experience n

respect of scheme liabihties and investment performance of scheme assets being different from previous assumptions Actuanal gains
and losses are recogmised in the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies {continued)
¢) Pension costs (contnued)
The value recogmsed 1n the balance sheet for each individual post retirement scheme, 1s calculated as follows

the fair value at the balance sheet date of the scheme assets out of which the obliganions are to be settted directly,
minus the present value of defined benefit obligation of the scheme at the balance sheet date,

minus any past service cost not yet recogmised, and

plus or minus the deferred tax hiability or asset respectively relating to the defined benefit asset or habihity

Termination benefits

Termunation benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated before the normal reirement date, or whenever an employee accepls
voluntary redundancy n exchange for these benefits The Company recognises termination benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falling due
more than twelve months afier the balance sheet date are discounted to present value

f) Share based payment

The value of the employee share options and other equity settled share based payments 1s calculated at fair value at the grant date
using appropnate and recognised option pricing models

Vesting conditions, other than those based upon market condinions, are not taken into account when esimating the fair value of such
awards but are 1aken into account by adjusung the number of equity instruments included in the ultimate measurement of the
transaction amount The value of the awards 1s recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the period during which the
employment services are provided

g) Taxation

Current tax, based cn profits and 1ncome for the year, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected
to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed n respect of all tnming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result 1n an obhgation to pay more tax 1n the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at
the balance sheet date Timung differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated 1n the
financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses 1n tax assessments 1n periods different from those in which they
are recogmsed 1n the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recogmised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying toing differences can be deducted A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed for rehef for trading losses or other losses only to
the extent that the directors anticipate that suitable profits will absorb such losses 1n the future

Deferred tax 1s not recogmsed when fixed assets are revalued unless by the balance sheet date there is a binding agreement to sell the
revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on sale has been recogmsed in the financial statements  Neither 1s deferred tax
recognised when fixed assets are sold and 1t 1s more likely than not that the taxable gamn will be rolled over, being charged to tax only
if and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax is recognised 1n respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that, at the
balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past earnings 1n future has been
entered mio by the subsidiary or associate

Deferred tax 1s measured ai the tax rates that are expected (o apply 1n the periods 1n which the nming differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s
measured on a non-discounted basis

h) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
17
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)

i) Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill, being the difference between the cost of an unincorporated business acquisition and the Company’s interest 1n the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and habiliues acquired, 1s intally capitalised 1n the balance sheel at cost and 1s subsequently recogmsed
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses The cost of the acquisition 1s the amount of cash paid and the fair
value of other purchase constderation given together with directly related expenses Goodwill 1s regarded as having a limited useful
hife that does not exceed twenty years and 1s amortised on a straight-hine basis over its useful life

Goodwill 1s subject to an impairment review at the end of the first full financial year following the iminal recogmiion of the goodwill
and, in other periods, if events or changes 1n circumnstances 1ndicate that us carrying value may not be recoverable in full Where the
review reveals that the carrying amount 1s more than the recoverable amount, an impairment 18 recognised

Other 1ntangible assets comprise renewal rights  These assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation  Amortisation on
renewal rights 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost over the esumated useful life, which 1s normally estumated
to be between 3 and 12 years

1) Investment property

Investment properties are shown at market value and are valued annually by independent prefessionally quahified valuers at open
market value Unrealised gains and losses are recogmsed 1n the non-technical account

The Companies Acl requires properties to be depreciated over their expected useful economic ives The directors consider that
depreciation of 1nvestment properties would not give a true and fair view In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting
Pracuce 19 “‘Accounuing for Investment Properties’, no depreciation 1s provided on these properties on the basis that deprectation 1s
already reflected 1n the annual valuations The amounts attnibuted to this factor by the valuers cannot reasonably be separately
wdentified or quantified

It 1s the Company’s practice to maintain properties occupied by the Company 1n a continual state of sound repair Accordingly the
directors consider that the economic lives of these properuies and their residual values, based on prices prevailing at the time of
acquisition or subsequent valuauon, are such that any depreciation 1s insignificant and is thus not provided

s

k) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments 1n subsidianies are valued at net asset value Reducuions in the recoverable amount of investments 1n subsidianes below
historic cost and reversals of such reductions are taken to the profit and loss account  Other differences between net asset values and
book values of investments 1n subsidiaries are taken to the revaluation reserve A negative revaluation reserve 1s transferred io retained
profits

1) Interests in associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control generally accompanying a sharehelding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Investments in associates are accounted as investments in participating interests and are
carried n the balance sheet at a directors’ valuation {(based upon the Company's share of the net current assets of the associate)
Changes 1n the valuation of associates are recognised in the statement of total recogmsed gamns and losses Dividends from associates
are accounted for as mcome 1n the period 1n which the Company becomes entitled to recerve the dividend

m) Financial assets

A financial asset 1s imtially recognised, on the date the Company commuts to purchase the asset, at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to 1ts acquisition A financial asset 15 derecogmsed when the nights to receive cashflows from the
investment have expired or have been transferred and the Company has also transferred substantally the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset

Where the following condiions are sansfied, financial assets (other than denvatives and onginated loans and receivables) are
designated upon mitial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss  The conditions are that the performance of the assets 1s
evaluated on a total return basis (including the changes in fair values) 1n accordance with a documented investment strategy and
information 1s provided 1nternally to the Company's key management persennel on this basis
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
m) Financial assets (continued)

On subsequent measurement, investments are measured at fair value with changes 1n fair value recognised 1n the non-technical
account Onginated loans and receivables are measured at amornised cost

n) Estimation of the fair value of finanaal assets and liabilities other than investments 1n subsidiaries
The methods and assumptions used by the Company 1n estimating the fair value of financial assets and liabilines are

e for fixed matunity securities, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices Where market prices are not readily
available, fair values are estimated using either values obtained from quoted market prices of comparable securities or esimated
by discounting expected future cash flows using a current market rate applicable to the yield, credit quality and maturnity of the
investment,

e for equity securnities fair values are based upon quoted market prices,

e 1f the market for a financial asset 1s not active, the Company establishes fair value by using valuaiion techniques  These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference o other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and opuion pricing models,

* {or morigage loans on real estate and collateral loans, fair values are csumated using discounted cash flow calculations based
upon prevalling market rates,

s for cash, short- lerm investments, commercial paper, other assets, habilies and accruals carrying amounts approximaie to fair
value,

e f{or notes, bonds and loans payable, fair values are determined by reference to quoted market prices or estimated using discounted
cash flow calculanions based upon prevailing market rates Loan capital 1s carried at amortised cost and when this 1s different
from fair value this 1s shown n the relevant note  Fair value 1n this case 15 based on discounted future cash flows For borrowings
that carry a vanable rate of interest (other than loan capital), carrying values approximate to fair values, and

e  for denvatives, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices

0) Denvatives

Derivatives are recogmsed 1n the balance sheet on a trade date basis and are carried at fair value Dernvatives are carmied as assets
when fair value 1s positive and as habilites when fair value 1s negauve  All gains and losses ansing are taken to the non-techmical
account The Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

p) Tangible assets

Tangible assets comprise equipment and computer software These assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciauion and any impairment losses Depreciation 1s calculated to wnite off the cost less the esimated residual value of the tangible
fixed assels on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows equipment 3 to 10 years and compuler software 3 10 5
years

q) Subordinated loans
Subordinated loans are classified according to their contractual terms

Subordinated loans are classified as a separate class of capital when the terms of the loan contain no obligation on the Company to
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or 10 exchange financial asseis or financial hiabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company and contain no provision to settle the loan through the 1ssue of equity
instruments of the Company Interest paid on such subordinated loans 1s not recognised in the profit and loss account and 1s deducted
from the profit and loss reserve when paid

Suhordinated loans are classified as hiabiliies when the conditions above are not met Interest costs on such subordinated loans are
calculated using the effective 1nterest method and are recogmsed n the non-techmcal account
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies
Introduction

One of the purposes of insurance 15 to enable policyholders to protect themselves agamnst uncertain future events Insurance companies
accept the transfer of uncertainty from policyholders and seek to add value through the aggregation and management of these risks

The uncertainty inherent 1n 1nsurance 18 1nevitably reflected in the financial statements of 1nsurance companies
The uncertainty 1n the financial statements principally arises 1n respect of the insurance contract habilises of the company

The nsurance contract liabilines of an insurance company include the provision for unearned premiums and unexpired risks and the
proviston for outstanding claims Unearned premsums and unexpired risks represent the amount of income set aside by the company
to cover the cost of claims that may arise during the unexpired period of nisk of 1nsurance policies 1n force at the end of the reporting
period The outstanding claims represent the company's estimate of the cost of settlement of claims that have occurred by the end of
the reporting period but have not yet been finally settled

In addiuon to the inherent uncertamty of having to make provision for future events, there 1s also considerable uncertainty as regards
the eventual outcome of the claims that have occurred by the end of the reporung period but remain unsettled This includes claims
that may have occurred but have not yet been notified to the company and those that are not yet apparent to the insured

As a consequence of this uncertainty, the insurance company needs to apply sophisticaled estimation techmques to determine the
appropriate provisions

Estimation techniques

Claims and unexpired risks provisions are determined based upon previous claims experience, knowledge of events and the terms and
condtions of the relevant policies and on nterpretation of circumstances Particularly relevant 1s experience with similar cases and
historical claims payment trends The approach also includes the considerauon of the development of loss payment trends, the
potential longer term sigmificance of large events, the levels of unpaid claims, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economc,
political and regulatory conditions

Where possible, the Company adopts muluple techniques 1o estimate the required level of provisions  This assists 1n giving greater
understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected The Company’s esumates of losses and loss expenses are reached
afier a review of several commonly accepted actuarial projection methodologies and a number of different bases to deterrmne these
provisions These include methods based upon the following

the development of previously settled claims, where payments to date are extrapolated for each prior year,
estimates based upon a projection of claiams numbers and average cost,

o notfied clams development, where notified claims to date for each year are extrapolated based upon observed development of
earlier years, and

s expected loss ratios

In addition, the Company uses other methods such as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method, which combines features of the above
methods The Company also uses bespoke methods for specialist classes of business In selecting 1ts best estimate, the Company
considers the appropnateness of the methods and bases to the individual circumstances of the provision class and underwniting year
The process 15 designed to select the most appropriate best estimate

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured either at the face value of the
loss adjusters’ estimates or projected separately 1n order to allow for the future development of large claims

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recovenes A separate estimate 1s made of the amounts that will be recoverable
from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due regard to collectability

The claims provisions are subject to close scrutiny both within the Company’s business units and at Group Corporate Centre  In
addition, for major classes where the risks and uncertainties inherent 1n the provisions are greatest, regular and ad hoc detailed reviews
are undertaken by advisers who are able to draw upon their specialist expertise and a broader knowledge of current industry trends in
claims development As an example, the Company’s exposure to asbestos related losses 1s examned on this basis  The results of
these reviews are considered when establishing the appropnate levels of provisions for outstanding claims and unexpired periods of
risk
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2. Esimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies (continued)

Estimation techniques (continued)

It should be emphasised that the estimation techmiques for the determination of insurance contract habilines involve obtaining
corroborative evidence from as wide a range of sources as possible and combining these to form the overall estumate

The pension assets and pension and post retirement habilities are caleulated 1n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS
17) The assets, habiliues and profit & loss account charge, calculated in accordance with FRS 17, are sensitive to the assumpuons
made from time to time, including inflation, interest rate, investment return and mortaity FRS 17 compares, at a given date, the
current market value of a pension fund’s assets with 1ts long term habilines, which are calculated using a discount rate in line with
yields on ‘AA’ rated bonds of suntable duration and currency  As such, the financial position of a pension fund on this basis 1s highly
sensitive to changes 1n bond rates and will also be impacied by changes in equity markets

Uncertainties and contingencies
The uncertainty arising under imsurance contracts may be characterised under a number of specific headings, such as

uncertainty as to whether an event has occurred which would give rise to a policyholder suffering an insured loss,
uncertainty as to the extent of policy coverage and hmus applicable,

uncertainty as to the amount of insured loss suffered by a policyholder as a result of the event occurring, and
uncertainty over the timing of a settlemeni to a pohcyholder for a loss suffered

The degree of uncertainty will vary by policy class according to the characteristics of the insured risks and the cost of a claim will be
determined by the actual loss suffered by the policyholder

There may be ssgnificant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured event and the time 1t15 actually reported 1o the Company
Foltowing the 1dentificanon and notification of an insured loss, there may still be uncertainty as to the magniiude and uming of the
settlement of the ctaim  There are many lactors that will determine the level of uncertainty such as inflation, inconsistent judicial
nterpretations and court judgments that broaden policy coverage beyond the intent of the onginal insurance, legislative changes and
claims handling procedures

The establishment of insurance contract habilities 15 an nherently uncertain process and, as a consequence of this uncertainty, the
eventual cost of settlement of outstanding claims and unexpired risks can vary substanually from the imtial estimates, particularly for
the Company’s long tail lines of business The Company seeks to provide appropnate levels of claims provision and provision for
unexpired risks taking the known facts and expenence into account

The Company has exposures to nsks in each class of business within each operating segment that may develop and that could have a
material impact upon the Company’s financial position The geographic and insurance risk diversity within the Company’s portfolio
of 1ssued insurance poltcies mean 1115 not possible 10 predict whether matenial development will occur and, 1f 1t does occur, the location
and the tming of such an occurrence The estimation of insurance contract habilitics 1nvolves the use of judgments and assumptions
that are specific 1o the insurance nisks within each territory and the particular type of insurance nisk covered The diversity of the
insurance r1sks results i it not being possible to 1denufy individual judgments and assumptions that are more likely than others to
have a material impact on the future development of the insurance contract habilities

The sections below 1dentify a number of speaific nisks relating 10 asbestos and environmental claims There may be other classes of
risk which could develop 1n the future and that could have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position

The Company evaluates the concentrauon of exposures to individual and cumulative isurance risk and establishes 1s reinsurance
policy to manage such exposure to levels acceptable to the Company

Ashestos and environmental claims

The esumation of the provisions for the ulumate cost of claims for asbestos and environmental pollutton 1s subject to a range of
uncertainties that 1s generally greater than those encountered for other classes of insurance business  As a result 1t 1s not possible to
determine the future development of ashestos and environmental claims with the same degree of rehability as with other types of
claims, particularly 1n periods when theories of law are 1n flux Consequently, traditional techniques for esumating claims provisions
cannot wholly be relied upon and the Company employs specialised techniques to determine provisions using the extensive knowledge
of both internal asbestos and environmental pollution experts and external legal and professional advisors
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2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies (continued)
Asbestos and environmental claims {continued)
Factors contributing to this higher degree of uncertainty include

e the long delay in reporting claims from the date of exposure (for example, cases of mesothehoma can have a latent period of up
10 40 years) This makes estumating the ultimate number of claims the Company will receive particularly difficult,

1ssues of allocation of responsibility among potentially responsible parties and nsurers,

emerging court decisions and the possibility of retrospective legislative changes increasing or decreasing insurer habuility,

the tendency for social trends and factors to influence court awards,

developments pertaining to the Company’s ability to recover remsurance for claimns of this nature, and

for US Labilities from the Company’s London market business, developments in the tactics of US plamnuff lawyers and court
decisions and awards

Potential change i1n discount rate for lnmp sum damages awards

Legislative changes may affect the Company’s hiabihty 1n respect of unsettled claims in the use of predetermined factors used by
courts to calculate compensation ¢claims For example, in the UK, standard formulae are used as an actuarial measure by the courts to
assess lump sum damages awards for future losses (typically loss of earmngs ansing from personal injuries and fatal accidents) The
calibration of these standard formulae can be updated by the UK Government and the Lord Chanceltor may review the methodology
10 be applied 1n deterruning the discount rate to calculate the appropriate settlements, or the discount rate itself, in due course A
reduction 1 the prescribed discount rate would increase the value of future claims settlements

Acquisitions and disposals

The Company makes acquisitions and disposals of businesses as part of 11s normal operations  All acquisitions are made after due
diligence, which will include, amongst other matiers, assessment of the adequacy of ¢laims reserves, assessment of the recoverability
of remsurance balances, inguiries with regard to outstanding htigaton and 1nguiries of local regulators and taxation authorities
Consideration 1s also given to potenuial costs, nsks and 1ssues 1n relation to the integration of any proposed acquisitions with existing
RSA operations The Company will seek to receive the benefit of appropriate contractual representations and warranties 1n connection
with any acquisition and, where necessary, additional indemmfications 1n relation to specific risks although there can be no guarantee
that these processes and any such protechion will be adequate 1n all circumstances The Company may also provide relevant
representations, warranties and indemnities to counterparties on any disposal

These clauses are customary 1n such contracts and may from time to time lead to the Company receiving claims from counterparties
Contracts with third parties

The Company enters into outsourcing contracts and distribution arrangements with third parties in the normal course of 1its business
and 1s rehiant upon those third parties bemg willing and able to perform their obhigations 1n accordance with the terms and conditions
of the contracts

Litigation, disputes and investigations

The Company, 1n common with the insurance industry 1n general, 1s subject to iigation, mediation and arbrtration, and regulatory,
governmental and other sectoral inquities and mvestigations in the normal course of its business Based on current information the
directors do not believe that any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral inquiries and investigations and
pending or threatened lingaton or dispute will have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, although there can
be no assurance that losses or financial penalties resuling from any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral
inquines and mvestiganons and pending or threatened hiigation or dispute will not matenally affect the Company’s financial position
or cash ftows for any period

Reinsurance

The Company 1s exposed to disputes on, and defects in, contracts with 1ts remsurers and the possibility of default by
1s remnsurers  The Company 1s also exposed to the credit nsk assumed in fronting arrangements and to potential reinsurance capacity
constraints  In selecting the remsurers with whom the Company conducts business, 1ls strategy 15 to seek remsurers with the
appropriate comhination of financial strength, price and capacity The Group Corporate Centre publishes internally a list of authorised
reinsurers who pass the Group’s selection process and which 1ts operations may use for new transactions
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Reinsurance (continued)

The Company montors the financial sirength of 1ts remsurers, including those to whom risks are no longer ceded Allowance 1s made
1n the financial posiion for non recoverability due to reinsurer default by providing, 1n hine with Group standards, having regard 1o
companies on the Group's ‘Watch List’” The ‘Waich List’ 1s the hist of compames whom the Group’s directors believe will not be
able to pay amounits due 1n full

Investment nsk

The Company 1s exposed to market risk and credit nisk on us mnvested asseis Market nsk includes the nsk of potennal losses from
adverse movements in markel rates and prices including interest rates, equity prices, property prices and foreign exchange rates The
Company’s exposure to market nsks 1s controlled by the setting of invesiment lumits in bne with the Group’s risk appetite From time
to ume the Company also makes use of denivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to adverse fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates and equity markets The Company has strict controls over the use of denvative instruments

Credut nisk includes the non performance of contractual payment obhgations on nvested assets and adverse changes in the credu
worthiness of invested assels including exposures Lo 1ssuers or counterparties for bonds, equities, deposits and denvatives Limuts are
set al both a pertfoho and counterparty level based on likehhood of default to manage the Group’s overall credit profile and specific
concentrations within nisk appette  The Company's insurance investment portfolios are concentrated 1n listed secunities with very
low levels of exposure to assets without quoted market prices  The Company uses model based analysis to verify asset values when
market values are not readily available

Rating environment

The abihity of the Company to write certain types of insurance business 1s dependent on the mamnienance of the appropnate credit
ratings from the rating agencies The RSA Insurance Group has the objective of maintaining single *A’ ratings At the present ume
the ratings are ‘A-’ (Developing CreditWatch outlook) from S&P and ‘A2’ by Moody’s A worsemng 1n the ratings, below objective,
could have an adverse impact on the ability of the Company to wnite certain types of general insurance business

In assessing credut nisk in relation to reinsurance and invesiments, the RSA Insurance Group takes 1nto account a vanety of factors,
including credit rating If any such rating changes, or 1s otherwise reassessed, this has potential imphcations for the related exposures

Foreign exchange risk

The Company publishes financial statements 1n Pounds Sterhing Therefore, fluctuations in exchange rates used 1o translate other
currencies, particularly other European currencies and the Canadian dollar, into Pounds Sterhing will impact the reported financial
position, results of operations from period to period These fluctuanions 1n exchange rates will also impact the Pound Sterling value
of and the return on the Company’s investments

Income and expenses for each profit & loss account ttem are translaled at average exchange rates Assets and liabilities, as reported
1n the balance sheet, are translated at closing exchange rates at the end of the reporting period

Regulatory environment

The legal, regulatory and accounting environment 1s subject to significant change in many of the junisdictions 1in which the Company
operates, including developments 1n response 10 changes in the economic and pohucal environment The Company continues to
maoniter the developments and react accordingly

Solvency Il, the new solvency framework being developed by the EU 1s intended to achieve greater harmomisation of approach across
EU member stales to assessing capital resources and requirements The planned implementation date 1s now | January 2016, although
there still remains continued uncertainty as to the final rules The Company is actively involved in shaping the outcome through s
mvolvement with European and UK regulators and industry bodies, whilst progressing 1ts implementation plans The directors are
confident that the Company will continue to meet all future regulatory capital requirements
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3. Risk Management
Introduction

RSA Insurance Group ple (the Group), of which the Company 1s an important part, 1s managed along divisional lines The Company
transacts the majonty of the Group’s UK business The directors of the Company have considered whether the Group approach to
strategy, nsk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate regulated
entity They have concluded that 1t does The following discussion sets out the approach of the Group, and hence of the Company, to
risk management

Rusk Management

As an insurance company, the Company 1s 1n the business of actively seeking nisk with a view 10 adding value by managing it This
note summarises the key nsks to the Group, and hence the Company, and the steps taken to manage them

The Group’s Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) defines the rnisk appetite of the organisation The Group emptoys a comprehensive Risk
Management System that includes a full range of nisk policies, procedures, measurement, reporting and momtoring techniques and a
series of siress tests and scenario analyses to ensure that the risk exposures that anise from operating the Company’s business are
managed appropriately

For the purpose of managing its risk the Group classifies nisks into the following categonies

Insurance
Credu
Market
Liquidity
Operational
Reputauonal
Strategic

Insurance risk
Underwnting and claims nisk

The Company manages these risks through its underwnting strategy, adequate remnsurance arrangements and proactive claims
handling The underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwrnitten nisks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of sk,
industry and geography

Pricing for the Company’s products 1s generally based upon historical claims frequencies and claims severnty averages, adjusted for
inflation and modelled catastrophes trended forward to recognise anticipated changes in claims patterns  While claims remamn the
Company’s principal cost, the Company also makes allowance 1n the pricing procedures for acquisition expenses, admunistration
expenses, Investment income, the cost of reisurance and for a profit loading that adequately covers the cost of the capital

Underwniting limits are n place to enforce appropriate nisk selection criteria The Company generally has the nght not to renew
individual policies, 1t can impose deducubles and 1t has the nght to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim In the UK and certain
other terntories, legislaon 1mposes a mimmum amount for which employers can be hable for claims for compensation from
employees injured at work These labilities are usually insured under an employers’ liability (or sumlar) msurance policy All policies
1ssued by the Company comply with mimmum statutory requirements

All of the Company’s underwriters have specific licences that set clear parameters for the business they can underwrite, based on the
experience of the individual underwriter Additionally, the Group has a centrally managed forum looking at Group underwriting
1ssues, reviewing and agreeing underwriting direction and setting policy and directives where appropriate  The Group has a quarterly
portfolio management process across all uts business umits, which provides a consistent assessment of each portfolio performance
against a set of key performance indicators Under the portfolio management system, key nsk indicators are tracked to monitor
emerging trends, opportumties and risks and, on an annual basis, a review forum of business and underwniting leaders undertake a
detailed review of each portfolio utilismg data from the quarterly reviews

The Company has developed enhanced methods of recording exposures and concentrauions of nsk  This means that there 1s greater
control of exposures 1n high risk areas and enables a prompt response to claims from policyholders should there be a catastrophic
event such as an earthquake
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Underwnting and claims risk (continued)

Remnsurance arrangements 1n place wnclude proportional, excess of loss, stop loss and catastrophe coverage The effect of such
reinsurance arrangements 1s that the Company should not suffer total net insurance losses beyond the Company’s nisk appetile in any
one year

Reserve nisk

The Company establishes loss reserves to account for the anticipated ulumate costs of alt losses and related loss adjustment expenses
(LAE) on losses that have already occurred The Company establishes reserves for reported losses and LAE, as well as for incurred
but not yet reported (IBNR) losses and unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) Loss reserve estimates are based on known
facts and on interpretauon of circumstances including the Company's expernience with similar cases and historical claims payment
trends The Company also considers the development of loss payment trends, levels of unpaid claims, judicial decisions and economic
conditions

The Group has a Group Reserving Committee consisting of the Group Chief Execuuve Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Group
Underwriting and Claims Director, Group Chief Actuary and Group Chief Risk Officer A similar commuttee has been established 1n
each of the Group’s major operaung segments The Group Reserving Committee momtors the decisions and judgements made by the
business units as to the level of reserves recommended and makes the final decision on the reserves to be included within the financial
statements In forming its collective judgement, the Commatiee considers the following information

e an actuaral ndication of ulumate losses together with an assessment of risks and possible favourable or adverse
developments that may not have been fully reflected 1n calculating these indications At the end of 2013 these nsks and
developments include the possibihity of future legislauve change having retrospective effect on open claims, changes 1n
claims settlement procedures potentially leading to future claims payment patterns differing from histonical expenience, the
possibility of new types of claim, such as disease claims, emerging from business written several years ago, general
uncertainty 1n the claims environment, the emergence of latent exposures such as asbestos, the outcome of liigation on
claims received, failure to recover reinsurance and unanticipated changes in ¢laims inflauon

e the views of internal peer reviewers of the reserves and of other parties including actuanes, legal counsel, nisk directors,
underwriters and claims managers

« how previous actuarial indications have developed

Use of reinsurance

The Company 15 exposed 1o both muluple msured fosses and losses ansing out of a single occurrence, for example a natural peril event such
as a hurnicane, flood or earthquake

All of the Group’s operations are required to purchase remsurance within agreed local reinsurance appetite parameters The Group Corporate
Centre authonises the operations’ proposed treaty purchases to check that they at least meet the Group’s appeute, for example the “1 1n 200
year’ standard for catastrophe nisk Group Corporate Centre also checks to see that total Group exposures are within the limits set out above
and also are consistent with the required nisk based capital In addition, local facultauve arrangements may be purchased where decmed
appropriate

The Company rematns primartly hable as the direct insurer on all nsks remsured, although the reinsurer 15 hable to the Company to the extent
of the insurance nsk ceded

Credit nsk

Credit risk 1s the risk of loss of value of the financial assets due 10 counterparties failing to meet all or part of therr obligations The
Board Risk Commuttee (BRC) 15 responsible for ensuring that the Board approved Group credit risk appetite 1s not exceeded This 1s
done through the seting and imposition of Group policies, procedures and hmats  In defining its appetite for credit nsk the Group
looks at exposures at both an aggregate and business unit leve! disungmshing between credit nisks incurred as a result of offsetting
msurance risks or operating in the insurance market (e g remnsurance credit nisks and nisks to receiving premiums due from
policyholders and intermedianes) and credit risks incurred for the purposes of generating a return (e g 1nvested assets credit risk)

Limuis are set at both a portfolio and counterparty level based on likelihood of default, derived from the rauing of the counterparty, to
ensure 1hat the Group’s overall credut profile and specific concentrations are managed and controlled within nisk appetite  Financial
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Credit risk (continued)

assets are graded according to company standards AAA 1s the highest possible raung Investment grade financial assets are classified
within the range of AAA 10 BBB raungs For invested assets, restricuions are placed on each of the Group’s investment managers as
to the level of exposure to vanous rating categones including unrated securities

The following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit nisk exposure for financial assets of the Company as at 31
December 2013

Total of
financial
assets that
are neither
past due nor

Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

AAA AA A BBB <BBB  Not rated impaired
£m £fm £m £m £m £m £m
Debt secunties 1,185 650 1,113 283 3s 15 3,281
Other financial assets 1 - 1 - - 9 11
Short term investments - 11 49 2 - 1 63
Reinsurance assets 106 190 459 139 23 106 1,023
Insurance and remnsurance debtors (1) 122 13 1,077 122 104 721 2,159
Derivative assets - 20 38 - - - 58
Cash at bank and 1n hand 25 125 43 2 3 5 203
As at 31 December 2012
Credit rating relating 10 financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Total of
financial

assets that
are neither

past due nor

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not rated impaired

£m £m £m £m £m £m £fm

Debt securities 1,345 521 1.246 209 39 15 3375
Other financial assets 1 - - - - 14 15
Short term investments - 36 24 - - 3 63
Reinsurance assets 97 236 404 149 36 48 970
Insurance and reinsurance debtors (1) 49 10 1094 85 102 824 2,164
Dernvative assets - 5 39 - - - 44
Cash at bank and in hand 1 176 41 - 3 1 222

Notes

1 The insurance and reinsurance debtors classified as not rated compnise personal pohcyho!ders and small corporate customers that do not have individual credut ratings
The overall nsk to the Company 1s deemed to be low as the cover could be cancelled if payments were not received on a umely basis

With the exception of AAA raled Government securities, the largest aggregate credit exposure does not exceed 2% of the Company’s
total financial assets

The Company 1s exposed to credit and concentrattons of nsk with individual reinsurers, due to the nature of the reinsurance market
and the resiricted range of remnsurers that have acceptable credit ratings The reinsurance strategy 1s to purchase remsurance 1n the
most effective manner from reinsurers who meet 1ts security standards Reinsurance counterparties are subject to a ngorous nternal
assessment process on an ongoing basis to ensure that thewr creditworthiness continues to be satisfactory and the potential impact from
reinsurer default 1s measured regularly and managed accordingly The Group Reinsurance Credit Committee oversees the
management of these risks Group standards are set such that remnsurers that have a financial sirength rating of less than *A-" with
Standard & Poor’s, or a comparable rating, are removed from the Group’s authonised list of approved reinsurers unless the Group’s
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Credit risk (continued)

internal review discovers exceptional circumstances 1n favour of the remnsurer Collateral 15 taken to mutigate exposures, where
appropriate, to acceptable levels or the size or credit quality of the exposure

The Group regularly momitors 1ts aggregate exposures by remnsurer group agamst predeterrned remsurer group limits, in accordance
with the methodology agreed by the BRC The Company’s largest reinsurance exposures to active reinsurance groups are HDI-
Gerling, Mumich Re and Swiss Re At 31 December 2013 the remnsurance asset recoverable from these groups does not exceed 4%
of the Company’s total financial assets Stress tests are performed by remnsurer counterparty and the hruts are set such that 1n a
catastrophic event, the exposure 1o a single reinsurer 15 estimated not to exceed 2% of the Company’s total financial assets The
Company and certain of its subsidianies are members of government mandated pools 1n vanious parts of the world As of 31 December
2013, the largest pool (by premium volume) 1s Pool Re operated by the UK Government to provide terrorism cover

There are no material financial assets that would have been past due or impaired had the terms not been renegotiated

The following table provides information regarding the carrying value of financial assets that have been impaired and the ageing of
financial assets that are past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2013

Neither past Financial assets that are past due but not Financaal Carrying Impairment
due nor impaired assets value in losses
impaired 0-3 3-6 6-12 Greater that have the charged to
than 12 been balance the P&L

months months months  months impaired sheet
fm £m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
Debt secunties 3,281 - - - - - 3,281 -
Other financial assets 11 - - - - - 11 -
Short term 1nvestments 63 - - - - - 63 -
Reinsurance assets 1,023 - - - - 1 1,024 (1)
Insurance and remsurance debtors 2,159 17 7 4 2 2 2,191 1
Denivative assets 58 - - - - 58 -
Cash at bank and 1in hand 203 - - - - - 203 -

As at 31 December 2012
Neither past Financial assets that are past due but not impaired Financial  Carrying Impairment

due 0-3 3-6 6-12  Greater assets value 1n losses
nor impaired than 12 that have the charged to
months months months  months been balance the P&L

imparred sheet
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt secunties 3,375 - - - - - 3.375 -
Other financial assets i5 - - - - - 15 -
Short term mvestments 63 - - - - - 63 -
Remnsurance assets 970 - - - - 4 974 -
Insurance and remnsurance debtors 2164 19 12 2 7 1 2205 5
Denvative assets 44 - - - - 44 -
Cash at bank and 1n hand 222 - - - - - 222 -

Local operations are responsible for assessing and momtoning the creditworthiness of their counterparties (e g brokers and
pohicyholders) Local credit commuttees are responsible for ensuring these exposures are withan the risk appeute of the local operations
Exposure momitoring and reporting 1s embedded throughout the orgamisation with aggregate credit positions reported and monitored
at Group level

The Company’s mvestments comprise a broad range of financial investments i1ssued principally in the UK
At 31 December 2013, the Company had pledged £871m (2072 £90/m) of financial assets as collateral for habtlities or contingent
habilities and had accepted £107m (20/2 £453m) in collateral The nature of the assets pledged as collateral comprises government

securities of £801m (2042 £855m), cash and cash equivalents of £37m (2072 £13m) and debt secunities £33m (20/2 £33m) The
terms and conditions of the collateral pledged are market standard in relation to letter of credit facihines
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Credit risk (continued)

The Company 1s permitted to sell or repledge collateral held 1n the event of default by the owner, the fair value of which has been
noted above at £107m  The terms and conditions of the collateral held are market standard The assels held as collateral are readily
convertible 1nto cash

At 31 December 2013, the Company had entered 1nto short term sale and repurchase agreements for UK government secunities The
Company continues to recogmse the debt securities on the balance sheet as the Company remains exposed to the risks and rewards of
ownershtp The carrying value of these debt securities recogmsed on the balance sheet 1s £300m (2072 £295m) and the carrying value
of the associated Liablhities1s £300m (2012 £295m)

The Company enters mio denvative transactions under International Swaps and Denvatives Association (ISDA) master netiing
arrangements In general, under such agreements the amounts owned by each counterparty on a single day 1n respect of all transactions
outstandmg n the same currency are aggregaled into a single net amount that 15 payable by one counterparty to the other In certain
circumstances, such as a credst default, all outstanding transactions under the agreement are termunated, the termination value 1s assessed and
only a single net amount 18 payable in settlement of all transactions

The ISDA agreements do not meet the critena for offsetting in the balance sheet This 1s because the Company does not have any currently
legally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, because the right to offset 1s enforceable only on the occurrence of future events

Market risk

The Group 1s exposed to the risk of potential losses from adverse movements in market prices including those of interest rates, equities,
property, exchange rates and derivatuves

Exposures are controlled by the setung of mvestment limits and managing asset-lhabihty matching 1n line with the Group’s nisk
appetile

The Group Investment Committee (GIC), on behalf of the Group Board, 1s responsible for reviewing and approving the invesiment
strategy for the Group’s investment portfolios It provides approval for all major changes of the Group’s investment strategy and, 1n
particular, approves any substantive changes to the balance of the Group’s funds between the major asset classes Importantly the GIC
also approves the terms of reference of the Group’s main operational investment commuttee, the Group Asset Management Committee
(GAMC) The BRC 1ssues GAMC with investment risk hmits

Interest rate nsk

The fair value of the Company’s portfolio of fixed income secunties 1s inversely correlated to changes 1n the market interest rates
Thus if interest rates fall, the fair value of the portfolio would tend to nse and vice versa as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page
30

Equity price risk

The Company’s portfoho of equity securities is subject to equity nisk arising from changes in market price Thus 1f the value of equities
rises so will the fair value of us portfolio and vice versa as set out 1n the sensttivity analysis on page 30

The Group sets appropniate risk limits to ensure that no significant concentrations to individual companies arise The Group takes a
long term view n selecting shares and looks to build value over a sustained period of time rather than utilising high level of purchase

and sales 1n order to generate short term gains from 1ts equity holdings

The Company makes use of derivative products as appropriate to manage equity exposure and to protect the portfolio from losses
outside of 1ts risk appetite

Property price risk

The Company’s portfolio of properties 1s subject to property price nisk ansing from changes in the market value of properties Thusif
the value of property falls so will the fair value of the portfolio as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page 30

A number of the Company’s property holdings are Group occupted The Company’s investment in invesiment property 1s recorded as
such and these investments are held as part of an efficient portfolio management strategy
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Currency risk
The Company 1ncurs exposure to foreign currency exchange risk in two ways

e Operational currency risk — by underwriting liabilities 1n currencies other than the currency of the primary environment 1in which
the business umts operate (non functional currencies)

»  Structural currency nisk — by investng 1n overseas subsidiaries and operating an international insurance group

Operational currency nisk 1s managed within the Company’s individual operations by broadly matching assets and habihues by
currency

Structural currency nsk 1s managed at a Group level through currency forward and foreign exchange option contracts within the hmus
that have been set In managing structural currency nisk, the needs of the Group's subsidiaries to maintain net assets in local currencies
to satisfy local regulatory solvency and internal nisk based capital requirements are taken nto account These assets should prove
adequate to support local insurance activities irrespective of exchange rate movements

Denvatives

The Company may use dertvative financial instruments for the purpose of reducing its exposure to adverse fluctuations 1n interest
rates, foreign exchange raies, equity prices and long term inflatton The Company does not use derivatives to leverage its exposure 1o
markets and does not hold or issue financial istruments for speculative purposes Forward contracts and foreign exchange options
are used to reduce the risk of adverse currency movements on certain forecast future cash transactions and the reduction of structural
currency nisk The policy on use of derivatives 1s approved by the BRC

Remaining life Fair value Notional prinaipal
amounts
Less than One to More than
one year five years five years 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cross currency
Asset 43 ) : 43 14 1,459 1323
Liability 38 - - 38 13 1,204 1411
Inflation
Asset - - 9 9 21 Seebelow Seebelow
Liability - - 7 7 24 See below  See below
Equity/index
Asset 6 - - 6 9 See below See below
Liabiliy 21 - - 21 12 See below  See below

At 31 December 2013 there were denvative contracts in place to protect the value of the UK, Canadian, European and US equity
portfolios of the Group These provided limited protection agamst declines in market levels whilst also capping participation 1n any
appreciation of the market In total, this strategy covers an underlying equity value up to approximately £379m (2012 approximately
£348m) 1f UK, Canadian, European and US equity markets decreased by 15%, the impact of these derivatives as at 31 December
2013, would be to decrease the 1mpact of the decline by £28m (2072 £26m)

The Company 1s party to a series of swap contracts which collecuvely provide hmited cover against a sharp increase 1n long term
inflation In total the swap contracts provide mflation cover over a nominal vatue of £180m (2012 £/80m) and are spht over different
contracl terms

At 31 December 2013 the Company holds currency forward contracts and foreign exchange options to reduce structural foreign
exchange nsk

Sensitivity analysis
The Group uses a number of sensiuvily or stress-test based risk management tools to understand the impact of the above risks on
earmings and capital 1n both normal and stressed conditions These stress tests combine determimstic shocks, analysis of historical

scenarios and stochastic modelling using the internal capital model to inform the Group’s decision making and planning process and
also for 1dentification and management of nisks within the business unuts
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Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following tables provides an indication for the Company of some of the single factor changes adopted within the Group

Impact of a 10% change 1n Pounds Sterling against Danish Krone/Euro, Canadian Dollar or Swedish Krona on shareholders’ funds

10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
strengthening weakening sirengthemng ~ weakening  strengthening ~ weakening
in Pounds 1n Pounds 1n Pounds m Pounds in Pounds in Pounds
Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling
agamst Danish against against against against against
Krone / Euro Danish Canadian Canadian  SwedishKrona Swedish
Krone / Euro Dollar Dollar Krona
£m £m fm £m £m £m
Movement in shareholders’ (55 67 (45) 55 (36) 44
funds at 31 December 2013
Movement 1n sharcholders’ s7) 70 (52) 64 (1) 62

funds at 31 December 2012

Impact on fair value of investments (note 1 and note 4)

Increase/(decrease)
2013 2012
£m fm

Interest rate markets {note 2)
Impact on fixed interest securities of increase in interest rates of
100bps (160} (152)
Decrease of equity markets (note 3}
Direct impact on equities of a 15% fall in equity
markets 39 (38)
Mitigating impact ansing from denvatives
held 28 28
Property markets (note 3)
Decrease of property markets of 15% (46) (46)
Notes

1 This analysis assumes that there 15 no correlation between equily pnce mierest rate and property market rate nsks [t also assumes that all other assets and liabihties
remain unchanged and that no management action 1s taken This analysis does not represent management's view of future market change, but reflects management’s
view of key sensiivities

2 The sensiivity of the fixed interest secunties of the Company has been modelled by reference to a reasonable approximation of the average interest rate sensitivity
of the investments held within each of the porifohos

3 The effect of movements n equity and property markets 1s reflected as a one ume decrease of worldwide equity and property markets on 1 January 2014 and 1
January 2013 which results in a 15% decline in the valoe of the Company’s assets in these investment categories

4 This analysis has not considered the impact of the above market changes on the valuation of the Company’s insurance contract habihues or reurement benefit
obligations

5 This analysis 1s presented gross of the corresponding tax credits/{charges)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Company may unable to pay obligations when due as a result of assets not being available 1n a form
that can be immediately converted into cash The investment nisk limuts set by the BRC ensure that a large part of the Company’s
portfolio 15 kept 1n highly liquid marketable secunties sufficient to meet 1ts habilities as they falt due based on actuanal assessment
and allowing for conungencies The limits are monitored at a Group level as part of the Group Risk exposure monitoring and BRC
reporting process In addition the Company has commutted credit facilites available as set out in note 26
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Maturity periods or contractual repricing

The following table summarises the contractual repricing or maturity dates (whichever 1s earher) for financial habilities that are subject
to fixed and vanable interest rates Insurance contract liabihties are also presented and are analysed by remaiming duration untl
settlement

Balance
Lessthan Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
one year two years three four five years ten vears  Total carrying
years years value
£m fm fm £m £m £m £m £m
2013
Fiancial liabilities
Subordinated habilities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 7,223 - - - - - 7,223 7,223
Amounts owed to credit institutions 364 - - - - - 364 64
Derivative trading habilities 64 2 - - - - 66 66
Direct insurance creditors 118 1 - - - - 119 119
Remsurance creditors 226 - 1 - - - 227 227
Total 7,995 3 1 - - 492 8,491 8.491
Interest on subordinated habilities 46 46 46 46 46 46 276 -
Balance
Less than Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
one year Lwo years three four years five years ten years Total carrying
years value
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2012
Financial habtlities
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed 1o Group undertakings 6,896 - - - - - 6,896 6,896
Amounts owed 10 credit institutions 348 - - - - - 348 348
Denvative trading liabihities 49 - - - - - 49 49
Direct insurance creditors 119 4 - - - - 123 123
Reinsurance creditors 139 9 2 4 - - 154 154
Total 7,551 13 2 4 - 492 8,062 8,062
Interest on subordinated habilities 46 46 46 46 46 92 322 -

Operational risk

Operational nisk 15 the nisk of direct or indirect losses resulting from human factors, external events and inadequate or failed internal
processes and systems Operational nisks are inherent 1n the Company’s operations and are typical of any large enterpnse Major
sources of operational nsk can include operational process reliability, information security, cutsourcing of operations, dependence on
key suppliers, implementation of strategic and operational change, integration of acquisiions, fraud, human error, customer service
quality, inadequacy of business continuity arrangements, recruitment, traiming and retennion of staff, and social and environmenial
impacts

The Company manages operatienal risk using a range of techmques and tools to identify, monitor and mitigate its operational risk in
accordance with Group’s risk appetite These tools include Risk and Control Self Assessments, Key Risk Indicators (e g fraud and
service indicators), Scenario Analyses and Loss Reporting In addition, the Group has developed a number of contungency plans
including Incident Management and Business Continuity Plans Quantitative analysis of operational risk exposures matenal to the
Company 1s used to inform decisions on the overall amount of capital held and the adequacy of contingency arrangements

Reputational risk

Reputatonal nsk 1s the current or prospective risk to earmings and capital ansing from adverse perception of the image of RSA on the part
of customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors or regulators  The External Communications team keeps under constant review the
threats to RSA’s reputation, both internal and external, and the Risk function works with them to promote a culture of responsibihity from
the front line businesses to the Board The tools used include a reputational nsk register, clear and simple processes, training, external threat
and perception monitonng and cnisis management plans
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Strategic nsk

Strategic nisk 1s the current and prospective impact on earnings or capital ansing from adverse business decisions, improper implementation
of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to ndustry changes This nsk 15 a function of the compatibility of an orgamsation's strategic goals, the
business sirategies developed to achieve those goals, the resources deployed against these goals, and the quahty of implementaton  The
strategic nsk profile 1s kept under continuous review by the Group Executive Commuttee and forms a key element of quarterly Board Risk
Commuitee meetings

Capital management

The Company 1s the major UK insurer within the group of companies (the ‘Group’) controlled by RSA Insurance Group plc and 1s
regulated by the Prudenual Regulation Autherity (‘PRA’) and Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA™)

Own Rusk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

The Solvency II directive introduces a requirement for undertakings to conduct an ORSA  In anticipation of this requirement the Group
has updated ts nsk and capital management processes

The Group defines ns ORSA as a series of inter-related activities by which it establishes

s  The quanuty and quality of the risks which 1t seeks to assume
e The level of capital required to support those risks
s The acttons it will take to achieve and maintain the desired levels of nsk and capital

The assessments of how much risk to assume and how much capital to hold are inextricably linked In some situations, 1t may be desirable
to increase the amount of nsk assumed or retained 1n order to make the most effictent use of caputal available or else to return excess
capital to capital providers In other situations, where the nisk assumed give rnise to a capital requirement that 1s greater than the capital
immediately available to support those nisks, 1t will be necessary etther 1o reduce the nisk assumed or 10 obtain additional capital

The assessment of risk and solvency needs 1s 1n principle carried out continuously  In practice, the assessment consists of a range of
speaific activities and decisions carmied out at different times of the year as part of an annual cycle, supplemented as necessary by ad hoc
assessments of the impact of external events and developments and of internal business proposals

Papers are presented 1o the Board throughout the year dealing with mdividual elements that make up the ORSA  The information
contained 1n those papers and the associated decisions taken are summarised 1n an annual ORSA report

Capital appetite

The Group and the Company’s objective 1s to maintain sufficient capital, which comprises shareholders’ equity and subordinated loan
capttat, 10 meet 1ts plan and objectives This represents sufficient surpluses for both regulatory and economic capital as well as sufficient
capital to support the Group’s and the Company’s aim of mamntaining single ‘A’ ratings To assist 1n managing 1its capital position, the Group
has set internal target coverage ratios for each of the pnincipal capital measures

The Group’s regulated entittes hold appropriate levels of capital to satisfy applicable local regulations  In centain instances this could
restrict the subsidiaries’ ability to transfer funds to the UK parent where retained earnings form part of the local required regulatory
capital Additionally regulation in certain countries in which the Group’s subsidiaries operate may also impose other hrmitations such
as foreign exchange control restrictions

Economic capital

Econormic capital 1s the Group's preferred measure of capital sufficiency It 1s the Group’s own assessment of the amount of capital it needs
to hold 1o meet1ts obligatuons given the Group’s nisk appetite Asseis and non-msurance lrabilities are valued on an economic basis providing
the most realistic representaton of the Group's financial position

The economic capital analysis compares available capital with the economuc capital assessment (ECA) Available capialis the capital (over
and above the IFRS nsurance habilities) that 1s available to absorb losses It includes subordinated debt, but excludes items such as goodwill
and other intangible assets, deferred tax items and pension scheme surpluses and deficits ECA 1s the capital required at a confidence level
equivalent to Standard & Poor’s long term A rated bond default curve At 31 December 2013, the Group’s surplus economic capital calibrated
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Economuc capatal (continued)
to Standard & Poor’s long term A rated bond default curve was approximately £0.7bn (2012 £0 7bn)

The position was adversely impacted 1n the year by falling yields and increased acquisitions offset by an improvement 1n expected future
retained profits

"The economuc capital model is used to support, inform and improve the Group’s decision making across the Group It 1s used 10 determine
the Group’s optimum capital structure, 1ts investment strategy, 11s reinsurance programme and to determine the pricing and target returns for
each portfolio The economic capital model 15 also used for the Group’s Individual Capital Assessment (ICA) The only adjusiment made 15
10 use the PRA’s required calibration

Regulatory solvency position

The Group and Company remain comphiant with both the PRA’s nisk based ICA methodology and Solvency 1

As at 31 December 2013 the Group and Company have an unaudited Solvency 1 surplus of approximately £0.2bn (2012 £1 2bn) and
£0.3bn (2012 £1 2bn) respectively The coverage ratio for the Company stood at approximately 1 2 times at 31 December 2013
(2012 1 7 umes)

The Group and Company received their latest Individual Capital Guidance (based on their ICA submission) from the PRA in February
2014 and at the request of the PRA remains confidential The ICA 15 a forward looking, economic assessment of the capial

requirements of the Group and Company based on the assessment of the risks to which 1t1s exposed The models used to determine
the ICA have been integrated inic the Group’s business processes and are used 1o enhance the management of the Group

4. Reorganisation costs and other items

The Technical account includes

2013 2012
£m £m

Reorganisation cosis 15 13
Operating lease rentals — eqmipment 1 1
Impairment of tangible assets 25 -

Reorgamisation costs compnsed employee redundancy costs, vacant lease accruals and other restructuring expenses

5. Exchange rates

2013 2013 2012 2012
The rates of exchange used in these accounts in respect of the major Cumulative Endof Cumulatve End of
OVEIseds CUITencies are Average Perod Average Period
Euro 118 1.20 123 123
US Dollar 156 1.66 159 163
Hong Kong Dollar 12.13 12.84 1230 1260
Singapore Dollar 1.96 2.09 198 199
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Accident  Motor Fire & Manne Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health PropertyAviation & Liahility insurance
Transport
2013 £m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross premiums written 49 1,022 1,507 395 425 20 270 533 4,221
Gross premiums earned 56 967 1,511 365 453 21 273 487 4,133
Gross claims incurred (32) (796) (704) (276) (506) (6) (155) 271) (2,746)
Gross operating (15) (231) (614) an 170y N (92) (146) (1,352)
expenses
Gross technical result 9 (60) 193 12 (223) § 26 70 35
Reinsurance balance - (28) (178) (%) 19 - (11} 40 (244)
Net techmeal result 9 (88) 15 6 (204) 8 15 30 (209)
Accident Motor Fire & Manne Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health Property Avianon & Liabihity 1nsurance
Transport
2012 £m £m £m £m £m £fm £m £m £m
Gross premiums wrilten 44 1,022 1,565 37 467 27 285 512 4,293
Gross premums earned 44 984 1,516 364 480 28 268 384 4,068
Gross ¢laims incurred (13) (882) (672) (283) 318) ‘)] (160} (246) (2,583)
(ross operating expenses (15) (197) (633) (135) (191) (11) (78) (133)  (1,393)
Gross technical result 16 (95) 211 (54) 29) 8 30 5 92
Reinsurance balance (4) [gLe)} (205) 30 (43) - 1 (28) (259)
Net techmcal result 12 {105) 6 24) (72) 8 31 (23) (167)
All of the business above relates to general insurance which 1s considered to be the only business segment
(b) by geographical segment
2013 2012
£fm £fm
Gross premuums written for direct business by ongin
UK 3,168 3,291
Other EEA 341 320
Other 179 170
3,688 3,781

Gross premiums are disclosed by origin  There 1s no material difference between the amounts shown and those by reference to

destination (1 € location of nisk)

Total commussions for direct insurance business accounted for by the Company during the year amounted to £616m (2012 £729m)

7. Auditors Remuneration

Fees payable to KPMG LLP for the audit of the Company’s annua! accounts was £1,030,875 (2012 Deloitte LLP £40,000} Details
of non-audit fees payable to KPMG LLP are disclosed 1n the RSA Insurance Group plc 2013 Annual Report & Accounts Audit fees
of £154,125 (2012 Deloute LLP £171,250) are also paid by RSAlIplc on behalf of certain subsidiary undertakings
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8. Directors’ emoluments

2013 2012
£000 £000

The aggregate emoluments of the directors, including amounts received from subsidiaries, were as follows
Salaries and bonuses 2,498 3,896
Allowances, benefits and other awards 515 662
3,013 4,558

The criteria for making bonus awards 15 based on targeted levels of business sector profit and specific business objecives  As at 31
December 2013, there was an interest free loan of £5,000 outstanding to A P Brown under the standard terms of the Group’s UK
Car Ownership Scheme, which 1s open to all UK managers within a qualifying salary band At the date of his appointment as a
director and at 31 December 2013, C J R Rash had a loan outstanding from the Company of £12,000 The loan was provided to
cover personal tax paid but recoverable relating to us employment with a subsidiary of the Company for which the terms of the loan
were agreed prior to the appointment of C J R Rash as director The loan has been repard 1n January 2014

2013 2012
£000 £000

The emoluments of the highest pand director (S P G Lee) were
Salary, bonus, allowances, benefits and other awards 1,009 1,516

At 31 December 2013 the lughest paid director had accrued annual pension of £nil (2012 £rul) This figure is based on the amount of
annual pension which would be payable on his attaining normal pension age 1f he had left the Company’s service on 31 December
2013

Retirement benefits accrued under defined benefit schemes for C J R Rash who served during the year In 2012 benefits accrued for
I A Craston Contnibutions of £84,502 (2012 £108,856) were made to Group defined contribution schemes during the year 1n respect
of the directors

Four directors have exercised share opuons and have had share awards which vested during the relevant period

The highest paid director (S P G Lee) exercised share options and shares were received 1n respect of qualifying services under a long
term ncentive plan

S P G Lee resigned as a director and his employment ended on 12 December 2013 In hine with his contractual agreement, he was
enutled to recerve a payment 1n lieu of twelve months’ nouce, paid 1n monthly instalments A portion of this payment, £40,144, was
pad for the period from 12 December to 31 December 2013 He was also paid £31,693 in lieu of annual leave days not 1aken duning
2013
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9. Employees and staff costs

2013 2012

£m £m

Wages and salaries 360 347
Social security costs 40 38
Other pension costs 49 16
449 401

Other pension costs include only those items included within operating costs Items reporied elsewhere have been excluded

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by

the Company durning the year was 2013 2012
UK 7,920 8,317
Other EEA 243 244
Other 320 280

8,483 8,841

10. Retirement benefits

The Company operates defined contribution pension schemes and funded and unfunded defined benefit pension schemes The assets
of the funded schemes are held mainly 1n separate trustee admimistered funds

In April 2002, the defined benefit schemes were effectively closed to new entrants following the introducuion of a new, primanly
defined contribution, scheme (the 2002 scheme) However, due to a small defined benefit underpin, the 2002 Scheme 1s sull disclosed
as a defined benefit scheme

In 2005, following discussions with the Trustees and consultauen with the members, the defined benefit schemes were altered from
providing benefits on a final salary basis to benefits on a revalued average salary basis with effect from I January 2006 Under the
new henefit formula, the accrued benefits of current acive members are based on salaries at the date of change and will increase 1n
line with inflation each year (limited to 5% in any year) up to their reurement date Benefits earned tn each year from 1 January 2006
are based on salartes 1n that year and are revalued up to retirernent

In addition to these changes, the 2002 scheme (which was the scheme to which new UK employees had been admitted following the
closure of the defined benefit schemes to new members) has been closed to further accrual from | January 2006 It has been replaced
by a stakeholder arrangement and members of the 2002 Scheme and future new employees in the UK accrue future benefits on a
defined contribution basis under the stakeholder scheme In 2013 contnbutions of £18m (2072 £1/8m) were made to defined
contribution schemes 1n the United Kingdom

During 2009 the Company entered into arrangements that tnsured 55% of the retirement oblhigations relatung to pensions in payment
in the two main UK schemes The arrangements comprise assets and interest rate swaps combimned with an insurance coniract that
provide for the full paymen of the pensions 1n return for the actual investment return on a segregated portfohio of assets held by the
pension funds at the inception of the arrangement The pension schemes continue to benefit from the assets held 1n the portfolio and
retain the obligation (o meet the insured pension obligatnons The assets and pension obhgations are therefore not derecogmsed 1n the
financial statements and an asset (represenung the recovery of the insured pension obligations) and a habiluty (to pay the investment
return on the portfoho of assets to the insurer) are recognised

During 2010 changes were made to the benefit structure of the three main UK schemes Changes affected future accrual from | March
2010 onwards Accrual rates were reduced, the retirement age was increased, revaluation was subject to a cap of 2 5%, a cap was
apphed 1o the salary used for the defined benefit schemes and the schemes contracted back into the State scheme Employees were
entitled to join the stakeholder scheme for earmngs above the cap '
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For the three main UK defined benefit schemes, the level of contributions 1n 2013 were £92m (20/2 £97m) of which £65m (2012

£70m) were additional contnbutions in line with the plan to reduce their funding deficits  Expected contributions to the three schemes
for the year ending 31 December 2014 are approximately £83m, including £64m of additional contnbuiions to reduce the deficit

Further additional contributions may become due once the results of the March 2015 funding valuations are known (results expected
1n 2016)

‘The components of the defined benefit pension cost that are included within profit before tax 1n the financial stalements are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Current service cost 17 19
Past service cosl 5 1
Total charge included 1n profit before tax 22 20

Expected return on assets (243) (288)

Interest cost on pension scheme habilities 252 266

Total financing charge/(credit) included in profit before tax 9 (22)

The schemes are effectively closed to new entrants The current service cost, under the projecied unit method, measured as a percentage
of acive members’ salanes, 1s hikely 1o nise as the members’ age profile increases

Amounts recogmsed within the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m
Actual return on assets in excess/(deficit) of expected return on assets 72 226 386 244 “413)
Expenence (losses)/gains on Labilities 16 (28) (70) 43) 116
Change n actuanal assumptions underlying the present value of scheme (237) (358) (364) (82) (644)
liabihittes
Actuarial (loss)/gain (149) (160) (48) 119 (941)
Deferred taxation 25 35 10 (35) 263
Recognised in the statement of total recogmsed gams and losses (124) (125) (38) 84 (678)
Movement 1n deficit during the year 2013 2012
£m £m
Deficit at 1 January (149) (89)
Total operating charge (22) (20)
Employer contribution 94 98
Total financing credit 9) 22
Actuanal (loss)/gain (149) (160}
Defiait at 31 December (235) (149)

The value of the defined benefit liability that 1s included at 31 December 1n the financial statements 1< as follows

2013 2012

£m £m
Equities 1,062 903
Bonds 4,925 4,705
Other 180 563
Present value of funded obhigatens fully covered by insurance arrangemem 1,561 1,544
Value of obhgations under insurance arrangement (1,721)  (1,969)
Fair value of assets held by pension schemes 6,007 5,836
Present value of pension hiabihities (6,242) (5,985)
Net deficit (235) (149)
Related deferred tax asset 47 35
Pension fund asset 2 29
Pension fund hability (190) (143
Net pension hability {188) (114)
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10. Retirement benefits (continued)

Included 1n the profit and loss account reserve 15 a pension and post retirement reserve on a FRS 17 basis at 31 December 2013 of

£(955)m (2012 £(831)m)
The following 1s a reconcihation of the Company’s retirement benefit obligations

2013 2012
£m £m
Retirement benefit obligations at 1 January 5,985 5,544
Current service costs 17 19
Pasl service costs 5 1
Interest costs 252 266
Actuanal loss on obligations 221 386
Benefits paid (238) (231)
Retirement benefit obligations at 31 December 6,242 5,985
The following 1s a reconcihation of the Company’s pension schemes’ assets
2013 2012
£m £m
Pension schemes’ assets at 1 January 5,836 5,455
Return on schemes assets ' 315 514
Contributions by the employer 94 98
Benefits paid (238) (231)
Pension schemes’ assets at 31 December 6,007 5,836
Additional informauon for the current annual period and previous four annual periods
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £fm £m
At 31 December
Present value of defined benefit obligations 6,242 5,985 5,544 5,046 4,835
Fair value of plan assets 6,007 5,836 5,455 4,927 4,523
(Deficit)/surplus (235) (149) (89 (119) {(312)
Expenience adjustments on plan habihties 16 (28) (70) 43) 116
Expenence adjustments on plan assets 72 226 386 244 (413)
The principai actuarial assumptions used were as follows
2013 2012
% o
Assumptions used 1n calculanon of reurement benefit obligation
Interest rate used to discount hiabihties 46 43
Annual rate of general inflation 33 25
Annual rate of increase 1n salanes 33 26
Annual rate of increase 1n pensions 32 25
Assumptions used in calculation of profit & loss account credit/charge 1n year
Discount rate 43 49
Expected return on
Equities 60 80
Bonds 34 43
Other 49 49

The expected return on schemes’ assets are determined for each asset class by considering both market condinons at the beginning of

the reporting period and any expectauons for longer term changes 1n current returns  All returns are net of investment expenses

Retrement benefit obligations compnse unfunded schemes £10m (2072 £/0m) and funded schemes £6,232m (2012 £5,975m)

Mortality rate

The mortality assumptions are set following invesugauons of the main schemes' recent experience by the schemes’ actuaries for the
funding valuations At the funding valuation 1n March 2012, the mortality assumptions adopted for the main UK schemes used the
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Mortality rate (continued)

SAPS Light Normal base table with percentage adjusiments to reflect the schemes' recent expenence compared with that expected
under these tables The next funding valuation has an effecuive date of March 2015, with results expected 1n 2016

Reductions 1n future mortality rates are allowed for using the CMI 2011 1ables with a long term rate of 0 85% The weighted average
assumptions imply that a current pensioner aged 60 has an expected future lifeume of 27.6 (2012 27 6) years (males) and 29.2 (2012
28 2) years (females) and a future pensioner aged 60 in |5 years ume has a future expected lifeume from age 60 of 28.3 (2012 28 3)
years (males) and 30 0 (2012 28 7) years (females)

Commutation

Each of the UK defined benefit pension schemes has changed 1ts rules to allow for increased commutation following ‘A day’ 1n Apnil
2006 In 2012 and 2013, the Group followed the funding valuation assumptions, and an allowance was made for future commutaucn
using the current commutation factors

Sensitivity analysis

The discount rate, the assumed nflation rate and the mortality assumptions all have a sigmficant effect on the FRS 17 accounting
valuation A 0 25% increase 1n the discount rate would reduce the defined benefit obligations 1n the UK not covered by the insurance
arrangement by £168m (2012 £153m) A 025% increase in the inflation rate assumption would increase the defined benefit
obligations in the UK not covered by the insurance arrangement by £120m (2012 £170m) An increase of one year 1n hfe expectancy
would increase the defined benefit obligations m the UK not covered by the insurance arrangement by approximately £98m (2072
£97m)

11. Share based payment

The RSA Insurance Group (the Group) has three types of share based payment plans in which employees of the Company participate
and which are settled 1n the form of ordinary shares the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the Sharesave Plan (SAYE), the Sharebuld
Plan Dilution levels for all schemes are held strictly within Association of British Insurers himits - Further information on the LTIP
scheme 15 included below and information on the other share schemes can be found in the remuneration report n the Annual Report
and Accounts of the Group

The total employment cost recorded in the profit and loss account for all plans 1s £6m 1n 2013 (2012 £4m)

Analysis of share scheme costs (per profit and loss account)

2013 2012

£m £m

LTIP 2 -
SAYE 2 2
Sharebuild 2 2
Total 6 4

The value of the awards granted during 2013 ts £10m (2072 £8m) of which £2m (2072 £2m}1s charged to the profit and loss account
The balance of the value of the awards will be charged to the profit and loss account during the remaiming vesting periods

Analysis of new awards costs

2013 2012
Charge for year  Total value Charge for year Total value
£m fm £m £m
LTIP 2 7 2 6
SAYE - 1 - -
Sharebuild - 2 - 2
Total 2 10 2 8

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Executive Directors and other selected executives was adopted following approval obtained
at the Group’s 2006 AGM  Awards have been made each year since 2006 following shareholder approval
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Long Term Incentive Plan (continued)
The structure of the plan allows for a number of different types of awards 10 be made

Voluntary Invested Deferred Shares are purchased by participants from net bonus payable (hmited to a maximum vatue of 33% of net bonus)
Voluntary Invested Deferred Shares are held in trust for three years

In addition, for serior executives, the Remuneratton Commuttee may defer a poruon of an individual’s gross bonus (Imited to 33% of that
bonus) into an award over shares referred (o for the purpose of the plan as Compulsory Deferred Shares Compulsory Deferred Shares awards
are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Company No further performance conditions apply

The Remuneration Commuttee may make a condiional award of shares on a *matched’ basis to Voluntary Invested and Compulsery Deferred
Shares (‘Matching Shares™) up to a maximum of 2 1 and these are normally forfeited on an employee kaving the Company

Additionally, the Remuneration Commuittee may make conditional awards of Performance Shares 1o semor executives and conditional awards
of Restnicted Shares to other executives and senior managers

Awards of Performance Shares and Matching Shares related 10 Compulsory Deferred Shares are subject to a performance condition
consisting of a combinaton of a return on equity target and a total shareholder return target (with performance measured by comparison
against other European insurance companies) over a single three year performance period Matching Shares related to Voluntary Invested
Deferred Shares are subject only to the return on equity performance condition Restricted Shares are not subject to performance conditions
All awards vest on the thurd anniversary of the date of grant to the extent that the performance conditions have been met Performance Shares
and Restricted Shares are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Company

Further information on the LTIP (including details of a proposed new long term 1ncentive plan) can be found in the Remuneration

Report within the Corporate Governance section of the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group Further disclosures 1o respect of
the SAYE and Sharebuild schemes have not been made on the grounds that the schemes are immateral to the Company

12. Investment income, expenses and charges

Investment income Net reahsed Net unrealised Total investment
gans/(losses) gains/(losses) return
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment income
Investment property 23 23 5 - (7 (25) 21 (2)
Equity secunties 22 31 8 37 (6) 3 24 65
Debt securines 121 121 1 4 111) 82 11 207
Other investmenis
Loans to subsidiaries 3 3 - - - - 3 3
Other 3 2 - - - - 3 2
Deposits, cash at bank and 1n hand 1 3 - - 2) - {1) 3
Derivatives 1 1 (14) 6 (9) (8) (22) (1)
174 184 - 47 (135) 46 39 277
Dividends from subsidiary undertakings 435 606 - - . - 435 606
609 790 - 47 (135) 46 474 883
Revaluation of subsidiary undertakings - - - - - (187} - (187)
Investment expenses, charges and interest
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 3 3
Interest on other loans 97 (11
Investment management expenses N )]
Unwind of discount 3) (2)
(110) (122)
Net investment return 364 574
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2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax
UK Corporation tax 4) (6)
Overseas taxauon 4 7
Adjustments n respect of prior periods (7 (11)
Total current tax V)] (10
Deferred tax
Timing differences — origination and reversal (59) (14)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods (5) 3
Adjustment for change 1n tax rates 25 14
Total deferred tax 39 3
Tax credit (46) (7)

UK corporation tax for the current year 1s based on arate of 23.25% (2012 24 5%)

Factors affecting the current tax (credut)/charge

The current tax (credit}/charge for the year i1s less than 23.25% (2012 less than 24 5%) due to the 1tems set out 1n the reconciliation

below
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 128 406
Tax at 23 25% (2012 at 24 5%) 30 99
Factors affecting (credit)/charge
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13 44
Tax exempt income and investment gains/losses (106) (155)
Fiscal adjustments (13) (19)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods )] (n
Group reltef surrendered without payment 8 9
Unrelieved foreign tax credits 1 3
Other iming differences 67 15
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (7) (10)
Other debtors inctudes £29m (2072 £34m) n respect of corporation tax receivable
14. Dividends
2013 2012
£m £m
Paid 8.87p (2012 Nu) interum dividend per ordinary share 400 -
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Goodwill Renewal Total
on rights
acquisition
2013 2013 2013
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 28 18 46
Adduions - - -
At 31 December 28 18 46
Amortisation
At | January ao (10} 20)
Charge for the year 2) (5) (7)
At 31 December (12) (15) 27)
Net hook value
At 31 December 2013 16 3 19
At 31 December 2012 18 8 26
16. Investments
2013 2012
£m £m
Land and buildings ~
Freehold 288 278
Long leasehold 18 37
Short leasehold - 2
Total land and buildmgs 306 317
Of which Group occupied 20 11
Movement 1n the carrying value of land and bwildings 1s detailed below
Land and butldings at | January 317 342
Sales (36) -
Purchases a2 -
Fair value losses (7) (25)
Land and buildings at 31 December 306 317
The historical cost of property at 31 December 1s £355m (2012 £363m)
2013 2012
£m £m
Other financial investments
Shares and other variable yield securities and units 1n unit trusts 362 402
Debt secuniies and other fixed income securities
Bniish government securities 926 1,183
Other government securities 162 168
Corporate bonds 2,193 2,024
At fair value through profit or loss (designated as such upon initial 3,643 3,777
recognition)
Loans and deposits with credit institutions
Other loans 11 13
Deposits with credit institutions 63 63
Loans and receivables 74 76
Total other financial investments 3,717 3,853
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16. Investments (continued)

2013 2012
£m £m
Listed investments
Included in total investments are the following
Shares and other vanable yield securities and umits 1n unit trusts 287 311
Debt securities and other fixed income secunties 2,820 2,828
3,107 3,139

Included within shares and other vaniable yteld securities and units in umt trusts above are ordinary shares in RSA Insurance Group
plc, the Company’s ulumate parent, held by the Royal & Sun Alliance ESOP Trust and Royal & Sun Alhance ESOP Trust No 2,
which have a carrying value of £0.2m (2012 £1m)

The historical cost of total investments 1s £4,017m (2012 £4,006m)

The property valuations have been prepared on the basis of open market value at the balance sheet date m accordance with The Royal
Insutute of Chartered Surveyors' Appraisal and Valuation Manual by Messrs Jones Lang LaSalle, external quahfied valuation
SUrveyors

Fair value measurements recogmised in the balance sheet

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to 1mbal recogmtion at fair value,
grouped 1nto Levels 1 1o 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Fair value hierarchy

Levell Levell Level 3 Total
2013 2013 2013 2013
£m £m £fm £m

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account
Equity securities 303 - 59 362
Debt securities 3,188 91 2 3,281
3,491 91 61 3,643
Derivauve assets 58 - - 58
Denvative habilities (66) - - (66)
Total 3,483 91 61 3,635

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account
Equity secunties 364 - 38 402
Debt securities 3,280 93 2 3,375
3,644 93 40 37717
Denvative assets 44 - - 44
Denvative lhabilites (50 - - (50)
Total 3,638 93 40 3,771

None of the Company’s insurance hiabilities are measured at fair value

the year
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16. Investments (continued)

A reconcihaton of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets 1s shown in the table below There are no financial habilities
measured at fair value using Level 3 fair value measurements

Equity Debt

securities securities Total
£m £m £m

Balance at | January 2012 25 3 28
Total gains or losses recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account 6 (H S
Purchases 7 - 7
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 38 2 40
Total gains or losses recognised 1n the profit and loss account 4) - @)
Purchases 25 - 25
Balance at 31 December 2013 59 2 61

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the penod  Of the 10tal gains or losses for the period (shown 1n the reconciliation
above) included in the profit and loss account. a loss of £4m (2012 £5m) relates to assets held at the end of the reporting period

17. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s principal subsidianies at 31 December 2013 are set out 1n note 34 The compames are principally all engaged 1n the
transaction of insurance or related business The countries shown are those of 1ncorporation and principal operation  The figure for
shares 1n subsidianies 1n the balance sheet comprises

2013 2012
£m £m
Net asset value:
At 1 January 10,676 10,733
Acquisitions 243 130
Disposals 38) -
Revaluation (652) (187)
At 31 December 10,229 10,676

The historical cost of investments 1n subsidianies 1s £11,728m (20712 £11,523m)

Acquisitions of £243m 1n 2013 compnse capual injecuons of £10m, £6m, £7m and £220m into The Manine Insurance Company
Limuted, Intouch Insurance Group BV, Westgate Properties Limited and RSA Insurance Ireland Ltd respectively Disposals of £38m
relates to the liquidation of Martello Underwnting Limited

18. Interests in associated undertakings

The Company has a 26 0% holding of ordinary sharcs in Royal Sundaram Alhance Insurance Limited, which operates and 15
wincorporated 1n India Duning the year, Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Limited undertook a fund raising exercise i which the
Company participated fully at a cost of £1 3m, maintaiming 1ts 26% holding

2013 2012

£m £m
Net asset value:
At 1 January 14 11
Foreign exchange losses (2) H
Acquisitions 1 2
Revaluations 2 2
At 31 December 15 14

The historical cost of interests 1n associated undertakings 1s £19m (2012 £17m)
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19. Tangible assets

Equipment Computer Total
software
2013 2013 2013
£m £fm £m
Cost
At 1 January 65 208 273
Additons 3 3
Disposals - . -
At 31 December 68 208 276
Depreciation
At | January (30) (102) (132)
Charge for the year 8) (26) (34)
Impairment charge - (25) (25)
Disposals -
At 31 December (38) (153) (191)
Net bhook value
At 31 December 2013 30 55 85
At 31 December 2012 35 106 141
20 Share capital
2013 2012
£m £m

Allotted, issued and fully paid up:
4,511,091,326 (2012 4,511,091,326) ordinary class A shares of 25p cach 1,128 1,128
1{2012 1I)ordinary class B share of US$1 - -

The Company has two classes of shares, ordinary Class A shares of 25p cach and ordinary Class B share of US$1 Each ordinary
Class A share carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company, the right to receive dividend payments 1n accordance
with the number of shares held and the right to participaie 1n any distnbution of capital of the Company including on a winding-up
Each ordinary Class B share carries no voting rights and no right to a dividend, but carries the nnght on winding-up of the Company
to a distribution in prionity to the Class A shares equivalent to the US$/L exchange rate gain as set out in the Articles of Association,
payable 1n sterling or US Dollars

21. Subordinated loan notes

2013 2012

£m £m

Subcerdinated loan note equity instruments 3n2 372
Subordinated liabilines 492 492

Subordinated loan note equity instruments

On | December 2004, the Company obtained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group ple, 1ts ultimate parent company, of
£294m, derived from the 1ssue of £450m of subordinated guaranteed perpetval notes on 23 July 2004 The notes have an annual
coupon of 8 50% The claims of the ultimate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims of the
holders of the notes The loan has no specified maturity

On 5 June 2006, the Company obiained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group plc, 1ts ulumate parent company, of £78m,
denved from the 1ssue of £375m of step up perpetual guaranteed subordinated capiial securities on 12 May 2006 The notes have an
annual coupon of 6 701% The claims of the ulumate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims
of the holders of the capital securities  The loan has no specified maturity

Interest of £23m (2012 £22m) net of 1ax was paid during the year on the subordinated loan note equity mnstruments and has been
recogmsed 1n the Reconciliation of movement in sharcholders’ funds on page 11
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21. Subordinated loan notes (continued)
Subordinated habilities
On 30 June 2009, The Company obtained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group plc, 1ts ulumate parent company, of £492m,
derived from the 1ssue of £500m of subordmated guaranteed step-up notes on 20 May 2009 The notes have an annual coupon of
9375% The claims of the ulumate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims of the holders of
the notes The loan has a maturity date of 20 May 2039 At 31 December 2013 the fair value of the subordinated habilities 15 £589m
{2012 £572m)
22. Claims outstanding
Claims outstanding include claims on certain classes of business which have been discounted The total value of outstanding claims

provisions less related reinsurance recoveries before discounting amounted to £4,583m (20/2 £4,693m) The total value of gross
outstanding claims provisions hefore discounting amounted to £5,537m (2072 £5,731m)

Claims are discounted as follows

Discount rate Average period 10
settlement 11 years
2013 2012 2013 2012
%o %
UK Asbestos & Environmental 4.00 500 12 12

In the UK certain long ta1l habilities are settled by an annuity  This 1s contained within the discounted value of UK and Scandinavian
annuities which 1s shown separately 1n note 20 of the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group

Prior year claims development
The movement wn net incurred claims ansing from the difference between the net clatms provision at the beginning of the year, and
subsequent payments and the claims provision at the end of the year, was a surplus of £20m (20{/2 £64m) The posiive run-off

reflects the Company’s approach to setting reserves at a level which i1s more likely than not to run off favourably over the longer term

23. Equalisation provisions

2013 2012

£m £m

Provision as at 1 January 316 286
Charged 1o the technical account - general busmess and 1n the profit on

ordinary activities before tax 3 30

Provision as at 31 December 319 316

As explained 1n note 1b)u, the effect of this provision 1s to decrease shareholders’ funds by £319m (2012 £316m) The increase
in the provision during the year had the effect of decreasing the balance on the technical account for general business and the profit
on ordinary activities before taxation by £3m (2012 £30m)
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24. Provisions for other risks

2013 2012

£m £m

At | January 95 93
Charged to Profit and Loss Account 43 55
Uuhsed (72) 43)
Released (21) (10)
At 31 December 45 95

Provisions 1nclude provisions of £10m (2012 £39m) held relating to vacant property leases, dilapidations and refurbishments, the
costs relaung to which will be borne across the period over which the leases expire, whichis up to 20 years Provisions also include
Motor Insurance Bureau provision of £15m (2012 £i8m) and reorganisation provisions of £9m (20/2 £10m)

25. Deferred tax

Deferred tax for the current year 1s based on a rate of 20% (20/2 23%)

2013 2012

£m £m

Unrealised investment gains 2 5
Accelerated capital allowances 71 67
Other uming differences 167 114
Deferred tax asset 240 186
2013 2012

£m £m

Deferred tax asset at | January 186 166
Transfer in 2 -
Credt for the year — profit and loss account 77 34
Charge for the year — statement of tolal recogmsed gains and losses - -
Adjustment for change 1n tax rate — profit and loss account (25) (14)
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 240 186

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses of £1,990m (2012 £],570m) and unused tax credits of £3.5m (2072
£2 6m) available for offset against future profits A deferred tax asset of £165m (2012 £90m) has been recogmised 1n respect of
losses and £3.4m (2012 £2m) has been recogmsed 1n respect of tax credits included within other temporary differences at 31
December 2013 No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of £1,207m (2012 £1.177m) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams The losses may be carried forward indefimtely

Net deferred tax assets of £287m (2012 £219m), which are in excess ot profits arising from the reversal of existing taxabie
temporary differences and that relate to 1ax junisdictions in which the Company has suffered a loss 1n either the current or preceding
penod, have been recogmsed on the basis that future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utlised The
evidence for the future taxable profits 1s a forecast consistent with the three year operational plans prepared by the relevant
businesses, which are subject to nternal review and challenge Where relevant, the forecast includes extrapolations of the
operational plans using assumptions consistent with those used 1n the plans

Total net deferred tax assets of £287m (2012 - £22 Im) includes £47m (2012 - £35m) of deferred tax asset 1n respect of the pension
liability The mcrease in the deferred tax asset during the year 1n relation to the pension hability 1s £12m (2012 - £12m) of which
£(13ym (2012 - £(23)m) 1s charged to the profit and loss account and £25m (2072 - £35m) credited to the statement of total
recognmised gamns and losses

26. Borrowings

2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts owed 1o credit institutions 364 348
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26. Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings comprise secured loans from credit institutions and bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand At 31 December
2013 and 2012 the Company had 1n place a one billion US Dollar Euro commercial paper programme There were no amounts
outstanding at 31 December 2013 (2012 £nil)

27. Other creditors
Other creditors including taxatton and social secunity includes £nil (2072 £n:if) 1n respect of corporation tax payable

28. Operating lease rentals

Lease commitments 1n 2014, by term of lease

Land & Buildings Other

2013 2012 2013 2012
£fm £m £m £fm

Operating leases which expire
Within one year 9 1 - -
Within two and five years 8 21 - -
After five years 7 3 - -
24 25 - -

All material leases of land and buildings are subject to rent review periods of between three and five years

29. Capital commitments

The estimated amount of capital commitments contracted but not provided for in these financial statements 1s £16m (2012 £50m)
30 Contingent liahilities

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc has guaranteed on behalf of RSA Insurance Group plc the following

s the US $24m 8 95% subordinated guaranteed bonds due 15 October 2029,

o the issue of £450m 8 50% subordinated guaranteed perpetual notes There 1s an option to call the notes on 8 December
2014 and every five years thereafter,

s the ssue of £375m step up perpetual guaranteed subordinated capinal securities There 15 an option to repay the bonds on
specific dates starting 12 July 2017,

s  theissue of £500m 9 375% subordinated guaranieed step-up notes  There 1s an option to repay the notes on specific dates
from 20 May 2019, and

¢ a £500m commtted credit facihty, of which £n1l has been drawn

31. Cash flow statement
The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of RSA Insurance Group plc and the cash flows of the Company are included n the

consolidated cash flow statement of RSA Insurance Group plc  The Company has thus taken advantage of the exemption permitted
by FRS 1 (revised 1996) ‘Cash flow Statements’ and has elected not to prepare its own cash flow statement

32. Related party transactions

Advantage has been taken of the exemption provided in FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing deiails of transacuons with
RSA Insurance Group plc and 1is subsidianes and associated underiakings

33. Parent companies

The Company’s immediate parent company 15 Royal Insurance Holdings ple, which 1s registered in England and Wales

The Company’s ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s RSA Insurance Group plc, which is registered 1 England and
Wales and 1s the parent company of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements A copy of that

company’s accounts can be obtained from 9 Floor, One Plantation Place, 30 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 3BD or from
WWW Isagroup com
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34, Principal subsidiary companies

Principal activity

Umited Kingdom

Argentina

Bahrain
Brazil

Canada

Chite
China
Colombia

Denmark

Guernsey
Isle of Man
Mexico

Netherlands

Poland
Republic of Ireland
Sweden

Uruguay

Notes

Briish Aviation Insurance Company Limted (57 1%)
The Globe Insurance Company Limited

The Marine Insurance Company Limited*

Royal International Insurance Holdings Limited*
Royal & Sun Alhance Reimnsurance Limited*

Sun Insurance Office Limited

Royal & Sun Alhance Seguros (Argentina) SA
El Comercio Compaiiia de Seguros SA (96 7%)
Aseguradora de Créditos y Garantias SA (99 9%)

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance (Middle East) BSC (¢) (50 0%)

Royal & Sun Alhance Seguros (Brasil) SA (99 9%)

Roins Financial Services Limited

Quebec Assurance Company

The Johnson Corporation

Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance Company of Canada
Western Assurance Company

Canadian Northern Shield Insurance Company
L’Union Canadienne Compagnie D’ Assurances

RSA Seguros (Chile) SA (99 53%)
Sun Alhance Insurance (China) Limited*
Royal & Sun Albance Seguros (Colomba) SA (86 7%)

Codan A/S
Codan Forsikring A/S

Insurance Corporation of the Channel Islands Limited*
Tower Insurance Company Limuted
Royal & SunAlhance Seguros (Mexico) SAde CV

RSA Overseas (Netherlands) BV
RSA Overseas Holdings BV
Intouch Insurance Group BV*

Link4 Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen SA
RSA Insurance Ireland Limited*
Trygg-Hansa Forsakrings AB

Royal & Sun Alliance Seguros (Uruguay) SA

1 UK companes are incorporated 1n Great Britain and are registered 1n England & Wales,
*100% direct subsidiary of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc '

2 Except where indicaied all holdings are of equity shares and represent 100% of the nominal 1ssued capital

3 Some subsidiaries have been omitted from this statement to avoid providing particulars of excessive length

4 A complete list of subsidianies will be attached to the Company’s Annual Return lodged at Companies House
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Holding company
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General insurance
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General insurance

Holding company
General 1nsurance

General 1nsurance
General 1nsurance
General insurance

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

General insurance
General 1nsurance
General insurance

General insurance




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
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35. Post Balance Sheet Events
Subsequent to the year end action was taken to strengthen the Company's capital posiion including
- the sale of the majornty of 1ts holdings 1n equity securinies, and
- the purchase of an adverse development cover contract (ADC) The ADC 1s underwritten by Berkshire Hathaway and
covers the insurance habilities in existence at 31 December 2012 It provides £550m of cover with an attachment pount
which 1s £550m above our undiscounted actuanal indication (excluding loss adjustment expenses) The Company retains
20% of the exposure This cover protects sharehelders from adverse reserve development and provides significant capital

benefits

On 26 February 2014 the Directors of RSA Insurance Group ple, the Company’s ulimate parent agreed to seek to raise £775m by
way of a rights 1ssue  The rights 1ssue has been underwnitten on a standby basis by a syndicate of banks

After the year end the Company also suffered losses arising from flooding 1n the UK of between £45m and £60m
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